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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800452-3345 Ext 9200

Fax: 603-271-4912 TDD.'Acccss: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.ah.gov

November 3, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. Nev^ Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to
amend existing Sole Source contracts with the vendors listecT below for services and activities to
-promote the health and.vtrell-being of.refugees resettled in.New.Hampshire. by.increasing.the total,
price limitation by $9,375 from $225,000 to $234,375 and by extending the completion dates from
August 14, 2023 to September 30, 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Govemor and Council on May 6,2020, Item #15.

Vendor Name Vendor

Code

Area Served Current

Amount

Increase

(Decrease)
Revised

Amount

Ascentria

Community
Services, Inc.

222201 Concord, NH $112,500 $4,687.50 $117,187.50

International

Institute of New

England, Inc.
177551

Manchester,

NH
$112,500 K687.50 $117,187.50

Total: $225,000 $9,375 $234,375

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022, 2023, and 2024, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF. HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY,
REFUGEE SERVICES

The Departnxeni of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State

Fiscal

Year

Class I

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $65,421 $9,375 $74,796

20i22 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $75,000 $0 $75,000

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
42200012 $9,579 $0 $9,579

Total $225,000 $9,375 $234,375

EXPLANATION

This request Is Sole Source because the contracts were originally approved as sole
source and MOP 150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labelled as sole source. ThlF
Contractors listed above are the only Contractors that possess the comprehensive client
information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address the complex,
interrelated health and social needs of each individual.

The purpose of this request is to add additional funding for State Fiscal Year 2021 and
change the contract period date from August 14, 2023 to September 30. 2023 to align with the
federal grant period. The Federal Grant Office of Refugee Resettlement requested the contracts
align with the awarded funding and funding period.

Refugees who have resettled to New Hampshire will be served through these contracts.
Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract terms.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and
mental health appointments; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and
facilitating transportation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all
appointments, as necessary.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

•  100% of newly arrived refugees and those who have been In the United States two
(2) years of less shall be prioritized.

•  100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and
prioritized for translation as applicable.

•  100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and regularly
throughout the project period.

•  80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health Insurance
^  requirements Including how and where to enroll In health Insurance.
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•  80% of adults shall express increased knowledge about accessing and navigating
the U.S. health care system.

•  80% of adults will know how to make and keep medical appointments.

•  80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicald, and/or appropriate
transportation to get to medical appointments.

•  80% of adults shall demonstrate Increased knowledge about at least one health
topic.

•  100% of clients with health needs beyond Initial exam shall be scheduled for follow-
up care.

•  100% of clients with mental health needs beyond Initial exam shall be scheduled
for follow-up care within 60 days of arrival.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the original contracts, the parties have the option to extend
the agreements for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Govemor and Council approval. The
Department is exercising its option to renew services for one (1) month and fifteen (15) days of
the three (3) yeare available. ^

Should the Govemor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department
will be out of compliance with the Office of Refugee Resettlements request to align the funding
and contract period with the grant. Refugees with complex health conditions may not receive the
follow-up medical care they need in a timely and culturally and linguistically appropriate manner,
and refugees may not gain the knowledge and skills they need to navigate the U.S. health care
system independently and to manage their health and health conditions.

Area sen/ed: Statewide ^

Source of Funds; Administration for Children and Families 100% CFD^ 93.578
FAIN#90RX0280.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lor V. Shibinette

Commissioner



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS; OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Afirc^ntria Community Services. Inc. Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32,812.00 $ 4,687.50 37,499.50

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00 $ 37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 42200012 $ 37.500.00 $ 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,688.00 $ - 4,688.00

Sub Total $ 112,500.00 $ 4,687.50 117,187.50

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title . Job Number Current Amount Increase (Decrease) Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 42200012 $  32,609.00 $  4,687.50 37,296.50

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices 42200012 $  37,500.00 $ 37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $  37,500.00 $ 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $  4,891.00 $ 4,891.00

Sub Total 42200012 $  112,500.00 $  4,687.50 117,187.50

Overall Total $ 225.000.00 $ 9,375.001 $ 234.375.00l

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail

Page 1 of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

This Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Ascentria Community
Services. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 14
East Worcester Street Suite 300 Worcester, MA, 01604.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (Item 15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A Section 1.2, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$117,187.50.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet
Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Ascenlria Community Services, Inc. Amendment#! ' Contractor Initials

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A01 Pagelof3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/12/2020

Date

C—OocuStgnad by;
Ann H. N. Landry

Name: Ann h. n. uandry

Title: . .
Associate Commissioner

Ascentria Community Services, Inc.

11/6/2020

Date

■DocuSlgnfd by;

— 9iB7HAil»7a^FS
Name: Jeffrey Kinney
Title: chief of staff & External Relations

Ascentria Community Services. Inc.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A01

Amendment #1

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

11/12/2020

DocuSkjntd by

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Ascenlria Communily Services, inc. Amendmenl #1

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Sccretar)' of Slate of the Stale of New Mampshire, do hereby certify that ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY

SERVICES, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on June 13. 20I I. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar>' of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 652197

Certificate Number: 0004904969

u.

o ■0
5®

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be alllxcd

the Seal of the Slate of New Hampshire,

this 30th day. of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I, Tara E. Browne : ; . hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC. cannot be contract signatory)

1. lama duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Offlcef of Ascenrtia Community Services. Inc .
iCorporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 8. 2020 , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

fDate) ^

VOTED: That Jeffrey Kinnev is duly authorized on behalf of
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Ascenrtia Community Services. Inc to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of
{Name of Corporation/ LLC)

New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any
and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the
purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State
of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New
Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: Co ,
Signature of Elected Officer

Name: Tara E Browne

Title: Corporate Clerk

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOnrVYY)

9/30/2020

THIS CERTIRCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED •
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the pcMlcy, certain policies may roquiro an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementis).

PROOUCEA

Hays CoB^anies Inc.

133 Federal Street, 4th Floor

Boston MA 02110

Tina Housman

PHONE FAX

thousaanehayscoinpanies.com

mSUREWS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJC «

INSURER A; Philadelphia Insurance Companies 92535

msuRSo

Aacentria Care Alliance

14 East Worcester Street

Suite 300

Worcester HA 01604

INSURER B:Philadelphia Indemnitv Ins Co 18058

iNSURERC:The First Libertv Insurance Corporatior 33566

INSURER D:

mSURER e :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:20-21 GL, Auto, Umb, WC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

iJB.
TYPE OF INSURANCE

f.Vl.TWII:!:!

POLICY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIIJTY

CLAIMS-MADE H

GENl AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES.PER:

LOCPOLICY

OTHER:

SRPK21S74T2

POUCY EPF
IMMmOIYYYYI

10/1/2020

POLICY EXP
iMMrtmrrYYYi

10/1/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
BAMASETOReNTEB
PREMISES lEa occufTtncAl

MED EXP |Any ono porton)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMPlOP AGG

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(E> >eti<»rni

1,000,000

100,000

25,000

1,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

AUTOMOOLE UABUTY 1,000,000

ANYAUTO

ALL OWNED

AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par parson)

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS

PHPK2ie74«8 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 BODILY INJURY (Par aeddani)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Par acddanil

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 10,000,000

10,000,000

RETENTION t PaaB7403SS 10/1/2020 10/1/2021

TER
STATUTE

OTH-

ER
WORKERS COMPENSATXM

AND EMPLOYERS' UABtLfTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER EXaUOED?
(Mandtiory In NH)
If yas. daactlba unoar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS belw

□
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 1.000,000

WC6-611-262252-010 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

E.L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT 1.000.000

Profaaaional Liability PRPK2ie7472 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 ApgragaM Urril

Eacn ProltttiontI InekMnl

$3,000,000

$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Ramirlia Schadub. may ba aftachad If mora apaea la raquirad)
Additional Naoad Insured: Aacentria Conuaunity Services, Inc.

Evidence of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

KH Department of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

James Hays/GSCHIC

ACORO 25(2014/01)
INS025 (201401)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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m

Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

261 Sheep Davis Road. Suite A-1, Concord. NH 03301
ascentrla.org j 603.224.8111 | info@ascentria.org

Fomnerty Lutheran Social Services of New Englarxl

Mission statement:

We are called to strengthen communities by empowering people to respond to life's challenges.

Vision statement:

We envision thriving communities where everyone has the opportunity to achieve theirfull

potential regardless of background or disadvantage. We become recognized leaders for

innovative community sen'ices. Together with our partners, we inspire people to help one

another reach beyond their current circumstances and realize new possibilities.

Empowering People. Strengthening Communities.

7^
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SINGLE AUDIT COMPLIANCE REPORTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
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'K
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

CLAconnectcom

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of
June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statement of activities, cash flows, and functional
expenses, for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated, financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

A member of

® Nexia (1)
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary as of
June 30, 2019, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standard

As described in Note 2, the Organization adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-For-Profit Entities. Accordingly, the accounting change has been
retrospectively applied to prior periods presented as if the policy had always been used. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to that matter.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The supporting information shown on page 20 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Maine Uniform Accounting and Auditing Practices for Community Agencies
(MAAP) and is not a required part the financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is also presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supporting information required by MAAP and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information, directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

(2)
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 20, 2019, on our consideration of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
December 20, 2019
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $

Accounts Receivable, Net of Estimated Uncollectible Accounts 3,868,580

Prepaid Expenses 87,471

Vehicle Inventory 70,292

Due from Third Party 543
Total Current Assets 4,026,886

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 977,537

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land 45,314

Building 85,798

Building Improvements 953,881
Leasehold Improvements 353,467

Furniture and Equipment 246,311

Vehicles 344,994

Equipment Held Under Capital Lease 499,374

Computer Equipment and Software 147,017
Total 2,676,156

Less: Accumulated Depreciation 1,790,804

Total Property and Equipment 885,352

DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES 5,781

OTHER ASSETS

Deposits 104,742
Total Other Assets 104.742

Total Assets $ 6.000.298

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30. 2019

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt $ 43,100
Accounts Payable 922,390
Accrued Expenses 1,055,170
Deferred Revenue 176,471

Due to State of Maine 62.472

LONG-TERM DEBT, Net of Current Maturities

Total Liabilities

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
(5)

Total Current Liabilities 2,259,603

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 2,802,397

442,534

5,504,534

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (566,615)
Without Donor Restrictions 1.062.379

With Donor Restrictions 495,764
Total Net Assets

$  6.000.298
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NET ASSET REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTION

Program Service Revenue:
Public Sources

Private Sources

Donated Vehicles

In-Kind Donations

Total Program Service Revenue

29,943.008

4.364,898
1,734,097

22,246

36,064,249

OTHER INCOME

Net Assets Released from Restriction Used for Operations

Other Income

Total Other Income

282,886

450,077

732,963

Total Revenue 36,797,212

EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Occupancy Costs
Operating Supplies and Expenses
Professional Fees

Garage Expenses '
Donated Vehicle Expenses

Client Support Expenses
Translation Expenses

Repairs and Maintenance

Travel Expenses
Educational Events and Meetings
Management Fees

Taxes

Recruitment Advertising

Advertising

Licenses and Fees

Custodial Fees

Insurance

Interest

Bad Debt Expenses
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Expenses

OPERATING LOSS

18,359,186

4,103,776

2,074,571

444,508

2,393,074

864,974

819,292

546,303

534,107

389,201

867,166

43,697

5,020,851

555,336

9,918

181,151

7,389

6,009

190,029

34,677

56,981

97,738

37,599,934

(802,722)

NONOPERATING ACTIVITY

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment
Equity Transfers, Net

Total Nonoperating Activity

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

17,873

(57,346)

(39,473)

$  (842.195)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Without Donor With Donor

Restriction Restriction Total

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Sfa(emen/s.
(7)

BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2018 (SEE NOTE 14) $  275,580 $ 1,278,529 $'1,554,109

Decrease in Net Assets without Donor Restrictions (842,195) - (842,195)

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets
of Related Party - 66,736 66,736

Net Assets Released from Restrictions - Operations (282,886) (282,886)

Change in Net Assets (Deficit) (842.195) (216,150) (1,058,345)

BALANCE-JUNE 30, 2019 $  (566.615) $ 1.062.379 $  495.764
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Progfam Services Supporting Servicos

Total

Transportation Disability & Child & Family Services For Total Managements Support Total

Services Mental Health Programs In-Home Services New Americans Program General Fundraising Services Expenses

Salariea and Wages S  968.707 $  5.736.667 6 2.716.268 6 3.953.013 $ 4.759.294 S  18,131.839 $  227.347 $ S  227.347 S  18.369,186

Employee BeneTits 236,076 1.462.866 516.804 910.093 869.958 3.996.796 107.980 - 107.960 4.103,776

Occupancy Costs 146.268 666.710 464.178 49.184 515.830 1,831.170 243.401 243.401 2.074,671

Operating Supplies and Expenses 27,169 206.160 64.069 30.160 88.896 416.474 28.034 - 28.034 444,608

Professional Fees 134.610 387.997 1,540.130 8.646 257.587 2.328.970 64.104 - 64.104 2.393,074

Garage Expenses 862,333 2.555 . 86 864.974 . . . 864,974

Donated Vehide Expenses 619.292 • • ■ • 819.292 - - - 819,292

Client Support Expenses 71 10,162 180.737 22 354.831 545.823 480 - 480 546,303

Translation Expenses • 30,484 357 - 498.641 529,482 4,626 - 4.626 534,107

Repairs ar>d Maintenance 49,833 38,191 100.064 72.631 101.896 362,616 26,566 • 26,586 369,201

Travel Expenses 162,833 228,390 183.221 36.645 272.283 853.372 13.794 - 13,794 867,168

Educational Events and Meetings 3,164 4,164 14.617 6.798 8.202 36.946 6,762 - 6,762 43,697

Management Fees - - - • - • 6.020,861 • 5.020.861 5.020.851

Taxes 602 543,621 • 11.132 61 566.336 - - - 655,336

Recruitment Advertising 2.133 215 '  3,271 3.771 338 9.728 190 - 190 9.918

Advertisir>g - - . • ■ • 161,151 • 181.151 181.151

Licenses and Fees 637 146 3.832 250 563 6,428 1,961 - 1,961 7.389

Custodial Fees • - • - - - 6.009 6,009 6.009

Insurance 7.062 69,721 28,969 41.193 49.077 186,022 4,007 - 4,007 190.029

Interest - . . . . . 34,677 . 34,677 34,677

Bad Debt Expenses 188 10,978 . 18.229 27.686 - 56,981 - . . 56,981

Total Before Depreciation

and Amortization 3.410,897 9.376.927 5.795.507 5.141.767 7.805.149 31.630.247 5,965,940 6.009 5,971,949 37.502.196

Depreciation and Amortization 26.217 6.041 53.607 . . 11.786 97,550 > 88 . 88 97.738

Total Functional Expenses S  3.437.114 6  9.382.968 S  5.849.114 S 5.141.767 S 7.816,934 S  31.627.897 %  5,966,028 S 6.009 6  5,972.037 $  37.599.934

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in Net Assets $ (1,058,345)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities;
Depreciation and Amortization 97,738

Bad Debts 56,981

Gain on Sale of Property and Equipment (17,873)

Change in Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party (66,736)
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts Receivable (583,196)

Prepaid Expenses 16,431

Deposits 37,534

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party 287,285
Vehicle Inventory (4,964)

Due to Third Party 885
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 5,976
Accrued Expenses 110,986

Deferred Revenue (40,612)

Due to State of Maine (118,938)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (1,276,848)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of Property and Equipment (232,172)
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 22,902

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (209,270)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments on Long-Term Debt (48,988)
Advanced from Related Parties, Net

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash Paid for Interest

1,312,363

(173,755)

173,755

$

? 34.677

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES '

Organization

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS) and Ascentria Community Care, Inc. (ACC)
(collectively, the Organizations) are corporations exempt from tax under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code as a public charity. Effective July 1, 2018, assets were
transferred to the Organization from Good News Garage - LSS, Inc. (GNG), related parties,
as a result of the combination of operations (see Note 14 for details). The Organizations
provide community service programs to children, families, refugees, and developmehtally
disabled adults throughout New England. ACS is the sole corporate member of ACC.
Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (Ascentria) is a sole corporate member of ACS and also serves
as the management agent.

The Organizations provide the following programs:

Social Services - through a variety of programs, the Organizations provide services
related to therapeutic foster care, unaccompanied refugee minors support, housing for
teen mothers and their children, housing for homeless, small group homes serving
teenagers, various support services and living accommodations for developmentally,
physically and mentally disabled adults and other various social support programs.

Refugee Sen/ices - through this program, the Organizations seek to provide
resettlement, employment, case management, medical case management, English as a
second language classes, and other support services to refugees, asylees, and
immigrants.

Adoption - through this program, the Organizations provide services related to domestic
and international adoptions.

Good News Garage - provides low-income individuals with transportation, such as
ownership of donated vehicles or access to shared rides, providing these individuals with
access to jobs and other economic opportunities, thus helping them to achieve economic
independence.

Goino Concern

The Organization has recognized their continuous operating losses over the past two years
due to a rapidly changing business environment. The Organization has made business
decisions over the past couple years to mitigate the impact of potential losses as a result of
the changing business environment. The Organization is transitioning their service model to
one that is customer-driven. Ascentria will support the Organization for any losses it may
incur as a result of management fees charged. This support may include alternative funding
for the management fees charged and offsetting It through Ascentria's investment proceeds
from its other subsidiary in order for the Organization to meet its obligations.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the consolidated financial
position, results of operations, changes in net assets, cash flows, and functional expenses
of the Organizations. Material intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Method of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organizations have been prepared on the
accrual method of accounting. Accordingly, assets are recorded when the Organizations
obtain the rights of ownership or is entitled to claims for receipt and liabilities are recorded
when the obligation is incurred,

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations consider all short-term debt securities purchased with an original maturity
of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded net of an allowance of expected losses. The allowance is
estimated from historical performance and projections of trends. Credit is extended to
customers and collateral is not required. When the accounts become past due, historically,
the Organizations have not charged interest to these accounts.

Inventory

Vehicles identified for the purpose of being delivered to program participants are valued
based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the reporting period which
approximates the lower of cost or net realized value.

Program vehicles expected to be sold at retail are recorded based on trade-in value.

Vehicles expected to be sold at wholesale are valued using the average sales proceeds for
all vehicles sold during the reporting period.

Vehicles are recorded as donated vehicles or donated vehicles - wholesale when the

vehicle is received.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Assets with an estimated useful life of more
than one year and a historical cost in excess of $2,500 are capitalized. The Organizations
capitalize acquisitions and improvements, while expenditures for maintenance and repairs
that do not extend the useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Donated property
and equipment are recorded at its fair market value at date of donation. Gifts of long-lived
assets are reported as net assets without donor restriction support unless donor stipulations
specify how the assets are to be used, and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to
acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property and Equipment (Continued)

Absent explicit donor stipulation about how long those assets must be maintained,
expiration of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets
are placed into service. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of the assets.

Related Partv Loans Receivable

The Organizations' loan portfolio is comprised on unsecured related party loans receivable
that are noninterest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms, as detailed in Note 3, and
is considered a single portfolio class. Related party loans receivable are recorded net of an
allowance for expected loan losses (allowance). The Organizations establish an allowance
as an estimate of inherent risk in the Organizations' loan portfolio. Although management
believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its estimates.

The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses that is charged to expense.
Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when the Organizations determine the
loan balance to be uncollectible. Proceeds received on previously charged off amounts are
recorded as recovery in the year of receipt. The Organizations determined that all related
party loans receivable are fully collectible as of June 30, 2019.

The Organizations review the adequacy of the allowance, including consideration of the
relevant risks in the loan portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors
periodically. The Organizations internally monitor related party borrowers to assess the risk
of nonperformance. The Organizations determine that changes are warranted based on
those reviews, the allowance is adjusted.

Net Assets

Net assets of the Organizations are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations.

Net Asset^with Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met
either by actions of the Organizations and/or the passage of time. Other donor-imposed
restrictions are perpetual in nature when the donor stipulates that resources be
maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that Is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for
which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. Net assets with donor
restrictions consist of $977,537 for beneficial interest in net assets of related party and
$84,842 other program restrictions for the years ended June 30, 2019. There were no
net assets invested in perpetuity as of June 30, 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Recoonition of Donor Restrictions

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor
restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support Is
recognized. All other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Donated Services

Donated services are recognized in the consolidated financial statements if the services
enhance or create nonfinancial assets or require specialized skills, are provided by
individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided
by donation. '

Program Service Revenue

Program service revenue is recognized as costs are incurred and services are provided.

Donated Vehicle Revenue

Donated vehicle revenue includes vehicles that will be repaired and delivered to program
participants. They are valued based on the average contract reimbursement rate for the
reporting period. Additionally, donated vehicle revenue includes donated vehicles that do not
meet the needs of program participants. These vehicles are sold at auction and valued
based on average proceeds for the reporting period.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs paid for by the Organization
amounted to $118,678 for the year ended June 30. 2019. Contributions of advertising are
recorded at the estimated fair value on the date of. the contribution. The Organization
received contributions of advertising estimated to have a value of $22,246 for the year
ended June 30, 2019.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The cost of providing the various programs and services are summarized on a functional
basis. Costs are generally identified as to program site, and are then allocated between
programs and supporting services that benefited based on total direct expenses. Salaries
and benefits are allocated on the basis of time and effort. The expenses that are allocated
are the portions of depreciation and interest expense that are not directly attributable to
specific programs or services. These expenses are allocated on a square footage basis.

Income Taxes

The Organizations are' nonprofit corporations as described In Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and are exempt from federal and state income taxes on related
income pursuant to section 501(a) of the code.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents amounts received by the Organizations for programs and
services not yet provided.

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with professional standards, assets and liabilities measured and recorded at
fair value are required to be categorized into a three-level hierarchy based on the priority of
the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair value. The fair value hierarchy
gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1) ahd the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).

If the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within different
levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities measured and recorded at fair value by
the Organizations are categorized as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 - Inputs that Include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these
instruments are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar
characteristics, or discounted cash flows.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically
based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any. related market activity.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements IContinued)

In Instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement in its entirety. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no
changes in valuation methodology used at June 30, 2019.

Change In Accounting Principles

The Service has adopted the accounting guidance in Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities, which changes presentation
and disclosure requirements for nonprofit entities to provide more relevant information about
their resources (and the changes in those resources) to donors, granters, creditors, and
other users. These include qualitative and quantitative requirements in the following areas:
net asset classes, investment return, expenses, and liquidity. Adoption of the new standard
had no effect on the previously reported total change in net assets or net assets balance.

New Accounting Pronouncements
Revenue from Contracts witfi Customers (Topic 606)
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),
which is a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard that will supersede existing
revenue recognition guidance. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should
recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. The FASB issued ASU 2015-14, which deferred the effective
date for the Organization until annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Earlier
adoption is permitted subject to certain limitations. The amendments in this update are
required to be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or with the
cumulative effect being recognized at the date of initial application. Management is currently
evaluating the impact of this ASU on its financial statements.

Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made

In June 2018, FASB Issued an ASU to clarify and improve accounting guidance for
contributions received and made (ASU 2018-08). The ASU provides guidance on
distinguishing between contributions and exchange transactions. If a contribution is
unconditional, the entity must determine whether It is donor restricted for limited purpose or
timing. These contributions should be recognized immediately and classified as net assets
with or without donor restrictions. If a contribution is conditional and assets are received in
advance, the entity should record a liability and not recognize revenue until conditions are
met. Guidance is further provided regarding reciprocal and nonreciprocal transactions. If
both parties receive similar value, the transaction is considered reciprocal.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Change in Accounting Principles (Continuedl

For nonreclprocal transactions, an entity must determine the conditions needed to be made.
The guidance will initially be applied retrospectively using one of two methods. The standard
will be effective for the Service for the year ended June 30, 2020. Management continues to
evaluate the impact of the adoption of this standard, but based on the latest industry
guidance, management believes this standard will not have a material impact on the
financial statements.

Reclasslflcatlons

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the
accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The
reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

Subseguent Events

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Organizations have evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 20, 2019,
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Partv

The Organizations record beneficial interest in assets that are held by Ascentria in the
amount of $977,537 at June 30, 2019. For the year ending June 30, 2019, the Organization
had a loan payable, included in accrued expenses, to the fund totaling $340,524.
Contributed assets are transferred to the Ascentria by either the donor or the Organization
with the approval of Ascentria. The donors did not grant variance power to the Ascentria.

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organizations have entered into the following transactions with related parties:

•  The Organizations are charged annually by Ascentria for accounting, management
services, and overhead in monthly installments. Charges to operations for these
services totaled approximately $4,928,088 for the year ended June 30, 2019. These
expenses have been included on the statement of activities under the caption
"Management Fees". In addition, Ascentria is the central contracting entity for
insurance coverage, and insurance costs are then billed monthly to the
Organizations.

•  In connection with soliciting and managing donations received, Ascentria charged
the Organizations a custodial fee. The custodial fee charged to operations was
$6,009 for the year ended June 30, 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 3 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

•  The Organizations have various office space rentals to and from related parties and
vehicle rentals from related parties. Rental revenue from related parties amounted to
$119,254 for the year ended June 30, 2019. Office space and vehicle related party
rents amounted to $454,395 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

•  Related Party loans that bear no interest and have no fixed repayment terms, are
as follows:

Due from Related Parties:

Lutheran Housing Corporation Brockton, Inc.

Emanuel Development Corporation

Total

5,632

149

5.781

Due to Related Parties:

Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc.

Total

$ 2,802,397

$  2.802.397

NOTE 4 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLAN

The Organizations participate in a defined contribution thrift plan (the thrift plan) qualifying
under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) maintained by Ascentria. The thrift plan
permits discretionary employer contributions based on a specified percentage of annual
compensation and employee contributions. The Organizations had no pension costs
charged to operations or contributions to the plan for the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 5 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable balance consisted of the following at June 30, 2019 :

Accounts Receivable - Program Services
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.

Accounts Receivable, Net

$  3,896,798

(28,218)

$  3.868,580

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Organizations to concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of the following:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organizations maintain cash and cash equivalent balances in several federally insured
financial institutions in the same geographic area as well as a money market fund. During
the year there may be times when uninsured cash is significantly higher and exceeds
federally insured limits.

(17)



DocuSign Envelope ID; 4708A489-6B2D-44DO^C2B-3C1DE1554104

ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 6 CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)

Major Customer

The Organizations receive significant funding from various federal and state agencies. The
states through which funding was received include Massachusetts, New Hampshire, and
Maine. Approximately 84% of the Organizations revenue was received from state and
federal agencies directly or via pass through for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Due from Related Parties

The Organizations extended unsecured credit to a related party. The balance due to related
parties totaled $5,781 at June 30, 2019.

Beneficial Interest in Net Assets of Related Party

The Organizations' unsecured gifts, held by a related party, amounted to $977,537 at
June 30, 2019.

Accounts Receivable

The Organizations extend unsecured credit to its customers. Accounts receivable amounted
to $3,868,580 at June 30, 2019.

NOTE 7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The useful lives of property and equipment for purposes of computing depreciation are:

Building, Building Improvements, and Leasehold Improvements 5 to 40 Years
Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures, and Vehicles 3 to 10 Years
Equipment Under Capital Lease 3 to 5 Years
Computer Equipment and Software 3 Years

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of equipment under capital lease)
expense charged to operations was $97,738 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE a MAINE MEDICAID LIABILITY

ACS provides services for Medicaid eligible individuals under terms of costs based contracts
with the state of Maine. Accordingly, ACS provides for the estimated amount of settlements
with Medicaid as a liability. Final reimbursement Is not determined until the state of Maine
accepts the cost report. The amount of the estimated liability was approximately $62,000 for
the year ended June 30, 2019. Adjustments to these estimates are reflected on the
statement of activities under the caption "public sources" to the extent not previously
recorded in the year the final settlement information becomes available to management.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT

The Organizations are liable on long-term debt at June 30, 2019 as follows:

Description Amount

Note Payable

Term note payable to Bank of America face amount
$350,000, due August 7, 2033, secured by business
assets, payable in monthly installments of interest
only through August 2008 then monthly payments of
principal plus interest through maturity. Interest rate

is fixed at 7.105% annually. $ 199,377

Mortgage payable to Bank of America face amount
$370,308, secured by real property owned by ACS at
two locations, and guaranteed by Ascentria, with an
interest rate of 7.01%, due August 2032. Monthly
principal and interest payments of $2,670. 271,355

Capital Lease Oblioations

ACS is obligated under various capital lease agreements
for equipment and motor vehicles, expiring in 2019, with
a combined monthly payment of approximately $2,200
with interest rates ranging from approximately 4% to 8%. 14.902

Total Long-Term Debt 485,634

Less: Current Maturities (43,100)
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities $ 442.534

Following are current maturities for the next five years:

Year Endino June 30. Amount

2020 $ 43,100

2021 32,752

2022 33,944

2023 36,455

2024 39,087

Thereafter 300,296

Total $ 485.634

Interest charged to operations for the above long-term debt amounted to $34,677 for the
year ended June 30, 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 10 OPERATING LEASES

The Organizations lease land, buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles under various
operating lease agreements with terms of one to three years. Total rent and related
expenses amounted to $1,056,543 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Future minimum lease payments under these agreements are as follows:

AmountYear Ending June 30.

2020

2021

2022

Total

$ 778,568

490,014

257,828

S  1.526.410

NOTE 11 CONTINGENCIES

A significant portion of the Organizations' net revenues and accounts receivable are derived
from services reimbursable under Medicaid programs. There are numerous healthcare
reform proposals being considered on federal and state levels. The Organizations cannot
predict at this time whether any of these proposals will be adopted or, if adopted and
implemented, what effect such proposals would have on the Organizations.

A significant portion of the Organizations' revenues are derived from services reimbursable
under Medicaid programs. The base year costs utilized in calculating the Medicaid rates are
subject to audit which could result in a retroactive rate adjustment for all years in which that
cost base was used in calculating the rates. It is not possible at this time to determine
whether the Organizations will be audited or if a retroactive rate adjustment would result.

ACS and Ascentria have entered into an equity sharing agreement related to four properties
transferred from Ascentria to the ACS on July 1, 2001. The agreement states that if the
properties are sold or leased to a third party, approximately 40% of the proceeds will
become payable to Ascentria. Such payment represents the excess of fair value of the
properties transferred over their net book value as of July 1, 2001. A significant portion of
the Organizations' revenues are derived from state and federal government funding. Due to
current economic conditions it is possible that funding from these sources could be reduced
in the near term. The Organizations cannot determine at this time if funding levels will
change, or what financial impact, if any, potential changes would have on the Organizations.

The receivables of the Organizations are listed as collateral under the line of credit
agreement of Ascentria. The outstanding balance is $2,775,000 as of June 30, 2019.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 12 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Organizations use fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain
assets and liabilities to determine fair value disclosures. For additional information on how
the Organizations measure fair value refer to Note 1 - Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The following tables present the Organizations' fair value hierarchy for those assets and
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2019:

2019

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Beneficial Interest in Net

Assets of Related Party: $ 977,537 $ $ $ 977,537
Total 977.537 $ $ $ 977.537

The following table provides a summary of changes in fair value of the Organizations'
Level 3 financial assets for the years ended June 30, 2019:

Balance • June 30, 2018

Income, Net of Releases

Balance - June 30, 2019

$  1,198,086

(220,549)

A 977,537

Since these funds are held by a third party that pools the Organizations' interest with other
related organization's assets, management has determined that the inputs are unobservable
and therefore valued using a Level 3 methodology.

NOTE 13 AVAILABLE RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
commitments. For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures
over a 12-month period, the Service considers all expenditures related to its ongoing
program activities as well as the condut of services undertaken to support those activities to
be general expenditures.

In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12
months, the Organization operates a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient
revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources. The
Organization considers the following to be available to meet cash needs for general
expenditures:

Total Financial Assets

Donor-Imposed Restrictions

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs for

General Expenditures Within One .Year

$  3,868,580

(84,842)

$  3.783.738
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 14 ASSETS TRANSFERS

On June 26, 2019 Ascentria Community Services, Inc. (ACS), and Good News Garage -
LSS, Inc. (GNG) combined their operations. The Organizations provide community services
programs and were combined to further their common mission by improving their community
services programs and achieving economies of scale and other synergies through
integration of services. As a result of the combination, the surviving organization is ACS.

The Organization followed the guidance related to transactions between entities under
common control to record the transition as Ascentria Care Alliance, Inc. (ACA) is the sole
corporate member of both entities. As a result of this transaction, the net assets of the
transferring Organization will be accounted for at the carrying amount as of the beginning of
the reporting period in which the transfer occurs. Therefore, effective July 1, 2018 the
carrying amount sof net assets of GNG were transferred to ACS. As of July 1, 2018 the
following was the respective carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, and net assets
transferred:

Total Assets $ 824,075
Cash and Cash Equivalents 42,309

Total Liabilities 307,808

Total Net Assets 516,267
Without Donor Restrictions 29,814
With Donor Restrictions 486,453
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF DEPARTMENT AGREEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

0«p«rtm«ni Offlc*

DHHS;

DPS

OPS

OSAMHS

AerMirwnt
Number

AOS-17-2572

MH2-1&-SieG

MH2-1S-eOO

AgrMment

Amount AgreeriMnt Period Agreement Service
Agreement

Statue

Federal

Expeneee

57.t68 7/1/20l6-06/3(V20l7 Rental Subsidy Interim

78.000 7/1/2015 4/30/2018 Community Integration Final

25.427 12/01/17-6/30/2018 Final

State

Expeneea

i  57,415

32.852

31,349

Total

Department

Expeneea

$  57,415

32.852

31,349

Total 121,ei< 121.816

DIacloaures;

Is your agency required to have a Single Audit? Yes: X No:
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CFDA

Fwltral Gfntor/Piss-throuQh GrentorfProorem Title Number

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services
Pass-Through Commonwealth of MassachuseRs

Department of Social Services:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Slate/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs ' 93.566

Office of Refugees and Immigrants:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Admirvstered Programs ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Wilson/Fish Program 93.583
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Wilson/Fish Program 93.583
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacemeni
Designee Administered Programs ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs ' ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance.Targeted Assistance 93.564
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs * 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs * 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs 93.566
Refugee artd Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants 93.576

Agency or Pass-through
Number

INTF0000009921519369

CTORI10017CRES000006

CTORI10017CRES000007

CTORtOlOO 17 RCM000007 WF

CTORI0100 17RCM000007 RSS

CTORI010017CM000008 WF

CTORI010017RCM000008 RSS

CTORI010017SAS000001,

CTORI010019SAS000001

CTbRI010019SAS000001
CTORI 0100 18 TAG000005

CTORI010015RSI000001

CT ORI010016PRS000002,

CTORI010019PRS000002

CTORI010019SAS000005

CTORI010018HPP000006 and

Federal Amount Provided

Espendltures to Subreclpient

$  1,665.221

134,436

111,259

65,524

1,689

44.367

4,500

10.435

8.450

47.100

1.990

20,960

14,820

5,164

2,274

2,250

3,750

010-045-7922000042200013

010-042-7922000042200012

010-042-79220000

010-095-59580000-102-010-042-

010-042-79220000-500731-42200010

0104)42 79220000 42200011

Pass-Through State of New Hampshire

Office of Minority Health and Refugee Affairs:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance State/Replacement
Designee Administered Programs ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants 93.576
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants 93.576
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants 93.576
Refugee arvl Entrant Assistance State/Reptacement
Designee Administered Programs ' 93.566
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Voluntary Agency
Programs 93.566
Medical Assistance Program 93.778

Pass-Through State of Vermont
Department of Children and Families

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Cluster 93.558 03440-1440-18 FAIN G1702VTTANF

Pass-Through Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Service
Office of Refugees and Immigrants:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Voluntary Agency
Programs 93.567
Unaccompanied Allen Children Program 93.676
Unaccompanied Allen Children Program 93.676
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Discretionary Grants 93.576

Pass-Through Church World Services
Office of Refugees and Immigrants:
Refugee and Entrant Assistance Voluntary Agency
Programs 93.567

Pass-Through VERA Institute for Justice
VERA - Institute for Justice 93.676

1802MORVMG

90 2U0182-02-05

90ZU0223-02 '

90RP0113-02-00

EMM SPRMC010CA017

RFP: HHSP233201500046C

105.106

31,915

30,728

16,778

44,166

52,254

120,427

309.091

30,434

735,001

146.303

4,063

41.600

51,879

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CFOA

NumberFederal Grantor/Pese-throuqh Grarrtor^rognm TMe

U.S. Department of State
Pas»-Through Lutheran Immigration and Refugee Service
Division of Unaccompanied Minors:
U.S. Refugee Admissions Program 19.510

'  U.S. Refugee Admissions Program 19.510

Agency or Pass<through
Number

SPRMC0016CA1003

SPRMC0016CA1003

Federal Amount Provided

Eapendltures to Subreclplent

S  203,163 $

17,050

Pass-Through Church World Services
Division of Unaccompanied Minors:
U.S. Refugee Admissions Program

U.S. Department of Agriculture
PasvThrough Commonwealth of Massachusetts

State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Cluster

U.S. Department of Education
Pass-Through State of NH Department of Education

Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

Pass-Through State of MA Department of Elementary and
Adult Education - Basic Grants to States

Pass-Through Commonwealth of Massachusetts
Rehabiitation Services Vocational Rehabilitation Grants

U.S. Department of Justice
Services for Trafficking Victims

Pass-Through Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Crime Victim Assistance

19.510 SPRMC018CA0010

10.561 CT WEL 44003064 LSS 0001A

84.002 Project # 77008 CAN 616 and CAN 716

84.002

84.126 SCMRC2007011GNGVD002

16.32 2016-VT-BX-Ke29

16.575 VOCA2017ACSN00000000

256.381

300.373

56.685

140.255

1.551

210.111

127.252

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

' Major Program

See accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary under programs
of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information In this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of Ascentria Community Sen/ices, Inc.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits
made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary has elected not to use the 10-percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of
Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2019, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 20, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Ascentria
Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Sen/ices, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.
and Subsidiary's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

A member of

(^Nexia
A member of
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and.
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
December 20, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary
Worcester, Massachusetts

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2019. Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about Ascentria Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Ascentria Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal prograrns for the year ended June 30, 2019.

A member of

® Nexia
International (29)
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Board of Directors

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Ascentria Community Services, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Ascentria Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Ascentria Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a material weakness. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over, compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CllftonLarsonAllen LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina

December 20, 2019
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Section I- Summary of Auditors' Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors' report issued:

2. Internal control over financial reporting:

•  Material weakness(es) identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) Identified?

3. Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

Unmodified

yes

yes

yes

Federal Awards

1. Internal control over major federal programs:

•  Material weakness{es) identified? yes

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes

2. Type of auditors' report issued on
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes

Identification of Major Federal Programs

93.566

no

none reported

no

no

.none reported

no

Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State
Administered Programs

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

S  750.000

X  ves no

(31)
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ASCENTRIA COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2019

Section II- Financial Statement Findings

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards.

Section ill - Findings and Questioned Costs - Major Federal Programs

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a).

(32)
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Ascentria
CARE ALLIANCE

FY2021 Board and Committee Membership

Board of Directors & Corporate Officers

'Directors

William Mayo (Chair) Rev. Ross Goodman (Vice Chair)

Karen Gaylin (Secretary) Garth Greimann (Financial Secretary)

Angela Bovill (Ex-Officio w/Vote) Scott Hamilton

Frederick Jenoure Stacey Luster, JD

Sherrl Pitcher Keith Robertson

Barbara Ruhe KImberly Salmon

Peter Schmidt

Angela Bovill (President) Jeanette Wade (EVP)

Jeff Kinney(EVP) Nicholas Russo (Treasurer)

Tara Browne (Clerk)

Last Updated; Monday. September 9, 2019Saturday, November 7, 2020

1 I P a g e
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Vijay Bhujel

WORK EXPERIENCE

Ascentria Care Alliance

Health Case Manager January 2016-November 2017, February 2018 to Current
Client Services

Serve refugees during their initial period of resettlement by facilitating access to hospitals, clinics and office
visits. This includes ensuring that refugees have appropriate assistance for appointments including
transportation and interpretation and liaising with service providers to ensure culturally appropriate and high
quality care.
Schedule initial health screenings for refugees in accordance with contractual standards. Make any
necessary pre-arrival arrangements for complex medical cases.
Responsible for providing effective leadership to Health Case Management team and delivering quality

services to the individuals served.

Partner Relations and Coordination

-  Serve as primary contact for health, mental health and specially health care providers; coordinates with
agencies on services refugees' access and follows up on individual cases as needed.

Serve as a liaison between human service agencies and'social services organizations and refugees to
facilitate access to services that promote the Social Determinants of Health.

-  Oversee maintenance of relationships with health and social services organization contacts through
frequent communication and coordination.

-  Networks and develops relationships with potential providers.

-  Provide and/or promote educational offerings to health and social service organizations regarding
culturally and linguistically appropriate services

Community Health Worker November 2017-February 2018
Served as a liaison between Nashua area health and social services organizations and refugees and
immigrants to facilitate access to services and improve the quality and cultural competence of service
delivery.
Oversaw maintenance of relationships with health and social services organization contacts through
frequent communication and coordination.
Networked and developed relationships with potential providers.
Created and supported connections with government agencies, provider associations, and community
members.

Promoted educational offerings to health and social service organizations regarding culturally and
linguistically appropriate services.

Bicultural Coordinator June 2013 to Januar}' 2016
-  Increased coordination and collaboration among elderly service providers, ethnic community and refugee

elders.

-  Assisted older Bhutanese Refugee with accessing mainstream aging services.
-  Developed additional culturally and linguistically relevant activities for older refugees.

Community Bridges of NH
Direct Support Provider February 2014 to Current

Provide direct support to individuals with disabilities such as transportation to daily activities in the
community, which includes exercising, volunteering, social activities and work.

-  Promote and engage individuals with disability in activities that meet the objectives contained in his
Individual Service Plan, with an emphasis on living independently.

-  Responsible for administering medication of the individuals with disabilities.
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-  Record keeping of individual's daily activities and also responsible for reporting the monthly progress
notes to the Program Manager

Wal-Mart Supercenter Concord, NH
Inventory Associate March 2013-June 2013

-  Unloading and stocking of new merchandise. Customer support and service.

Reliance English School - Morang, Nepal
Mathematics and Sciences Teacher 2007-2012

-  Taught mathematics and science to students in grades 8 through 10.
-  Designed and presented comprehensive lesson plans ensuring that each student could retain and understand

each lesson. Acted as the "Academic in Charge" for testing of students and teachers.
-  Developed unit-based projects to tie curriculum to real life.

The Spangle High School - Kathmandu, Nepal
Mathematics and Sciences Teacher 2004-2007

-  Taught mathematics and science to students in grades 6 thro.ugh 10.
Planned and implemented science and math curriculum to improve retention and test scores.

-  Acted as Resident Advisor to students living in a dormitory setting. Responsible for the school's discipline
policies and procedures as well as student disciplinary decisions.

Panchaoti English School - Jhapa, Nepal 1999-2004
Community School Teacher

Assigned various disabled students and provided them with learning support, personal care and help with
the school to home transitions.

-  Taught mathematics and sciences to students in grades 6 through 10. Introduced stimulating and engaging
lessons to capture the students' attention and interest. Provided clear and consistent directions to keep
students focused on the task.

-  Coordinated with colleagues to share best practices and address academic issues.

Cultural In Charge
Worked as Cultural In Charge in Panchaoti English School, helping students adjust to new culture trends.

-  Coordinated the Bhutanese Refugee Children in the field of cultural arts.
-  Worked as a curriculum developer to prepare lesson plans and work with administrators to ensure that the

curriculum meets professional standards.
-  Engaged students through music, visual arts, dance, languages, and theater performance to enrich them

with cultural values.

Monitored the classroom and assigned special projects that utilize creative expression as a means of
cultural edification.

EDUCATION

Tri Ratna Secondary School
High School Diploma

1994-1998

Kumudini Homes

Associate's Degree
1998-2000

Government- College of Kalimpong
University of North Bangal
B.S.C Science-Physics

2000-2003
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Amy E. Marchildon

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Ascentria Care Alliance Concord, NH

Director, Services for New Americans 10/2007- Present
Refugee Resettlement:

•  Implement and manage the U.S. Department of State and Office of Refugee Resettlement
refugee resettlement program including provision of basic needs, case management,
cultural orientation and adjustment, youth and older adult programs, English language
programs, employment services, and volunteer support.

• Manage ID to 20-person team; responsible for workflow, training and personnel issues.

•  Responsible for up to $2M program budget (includes federal, state and private contracts).

•  Responsible for grant-writing, contract execution, program design and implementation,
monitoring and evaluation, performance and quality improvement initiatives, and
reporting.

•  Lead special projects including a Medicaid waiver demonstration project (focused on
community health work and cultural effectiveness training), and the Partnership for
Refugee Wellness project based in Worcester, MA (focused on coaching, social
determinants of health and community partner coordination - 07/16 - 06/17).

•  Advocate at local, state, and federal levels (including legislative advocacy).

•  Provide public education, conduct community outreach, and participate on local
committees and coalitions related to refugees/immigrants and workforce development.

•  Represent the program at local, state and national levels including chairing and
participating on advisory committees to National Resettlement Agencies.

Health Profession Opportunity Project (201 1-2015):
•  implemented and managed 4.5-year health profession-related workforce

development program including coaching, case management, employment and
financial assistance services. Primary participants included TANF/SNAP
populations.

• Managed 8-person team; responsible for workflow, training and personnel issues.
•  Responsible for $ 1OM program budget.
•  Responsible for program design including creation of local business advisory

councils, monitoring and evaluation, performance and quality improvement
initiatives, and reporting.

Language Bank (2010-2015):

• Managed statewide 24/7 foreign language and ASL interpretation and translation
services, which includes medical and legal interpretation.

• Managed 10-person administrative team and up to 150-person interpreter team.
•  Responsible for approximately $1.25M program budget.
•  Secured and executed state contracts with the NH Department of Health and

Human Services and the Administrative Office of the Courts.

General Ascentria Contributions:

•  Chair NH-VT Performance Quality Improvement (PQI) Team; co-chair NH-VT
Safety Committee; chaired HEARTS (honoring employees and raising team
spirit) Committee; participate on Safety Steering Committee, Merit Compensation
Committee, Contract Management/Program Expansion Team, Advancement
Strategy Team; participated on Agency PQI Committee, Accreditation Advisory
Team, ACE (achieving client engagement) Committee and its subcommittee FAD
(framework and design); and called upon for grant-writing and associated
program design and budget development including public and private grants at the
federal and local levels for a variety of Ascentria programs and initiatives.
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Program Manager 08/2005 - 09/2007
•  Responsible for day-to-day operations of the refugee resettlement program.

•  Supervised lO-person team.

• Managed $.75M program budget.
Case Manager/Matching Grant Coordinator 09/2002-08/2005

•  Coordinated core resettlement services and employment activities for refugees in
compliance with federal and state contracts.

Refugee Sendees of North Texas Ft. Worth, TX
Sub-Office Director 01/2001 -07/2002

•  Coordinated resettlement activities and supervised 5-person team.

•  Advocated for refugees at local and national levels.
Matching Grant Coordinator 09/1999-12/2000
• Managed employment program including completing enrollment and status reports.

•  Generated, tracked and reported cash and in-kind donations.

Immigration and Refugee Services of America Ft. Dix, NJ
Caseworker May-July 1999

•  Registered newly arrived Kosovar refugees into Ft. Dix army base, NJ.

•  Interviewed refugees and prepared cases for US Citizenship and Immigration Services
screening.

•  Prepared travel packets for International Organization of Migration.

Austin Metropolitan Ministries Austin, TX
Matching Grant Coordinator 01/1998-05/1999

• Managed employment program including completing enrollment and status reports.

•  Generated, tracked and reported cash and in-kind donations.
Refugee Resettlement Case Manager 09/1996-05/1999

•  Coordinated resettlement activities for newly arrived refugees including volunteer
support, and prepared case status and financial reports.

EDUCATION

Colby College Waterville, ME
Bachelor of Arts, double major in art histoo' and classics with a minor in religion, 1994.

ASSOCIATIONS

Association for Refugee Sendee Professionals 2010-present

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Zonta Club of Concord Concord, NH

• Member of service organization empowering women and girls through mentorship,
educational scholarships and fundraising, 2009-2018.

President, 2014-2016/ Board of Directors 2010-2018.

Community Service Corps Volunteer Program Syracuse, NY
Refugee Resettlement Caseworker 08/1994-08/1995

•  Coordinated resettlement activities for newly arrived refugees.
House Manager - Dorothy Day House 08/1994-08/1995

•  Created and managed children's daycare program at women's shelter.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Vijay Bhuje) Health Case Manager $37,835 45.00% $17,026
Amy Marchildon Director $70,000 5.00% $3,500
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Lori A. Shiblnctte

Coremlsiioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-271-9200 1-800-852-3345 CiL 9200

Fix: 603-271-4912 TOD Access; 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

/

March 20. 2020

His Exceller^cy, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the services and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New Hampshire, in an amount not to exceed
$225,000, effective August 15, 2020 or upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later, through August 14, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Number

Location Contract Amount

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. 222201 Concord, NH' $112,500

International Institute of New

England, Inc.
177551 Manchester, NH $112,500

Total: $225,000

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal yearsi through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY. REFUGEE SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
1

Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $65,421

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $9,579

1

1

Total $ 225,000
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His Excellency. Governor Chfislopher T. Sununu
And the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3
EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the vendors listed above are the only entities who, possess
the comprehensive client information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address
the complex, interrelated health and social" needs of each individual, Moreover, because Health
Promotion ser^ces build upon and flow from the services provided under the Reception and Placement
and Case Coordination grants, contracting with these entities ensures that no clients fall through the
cracks, and that there Is continuity of care with no gaps in services.

The purpose of this request is to provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of refugees resettled In New Hampshire. Services include, but are not limited to health
orientations; health education; medical and mental health case management; and health provider
education. The services are provided in an effort to reduce gaps in services and to ensure refugees
obtain all necessary medical and mental health services beyond the Initial health screening.

Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract term.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and rneiitai ..
health appointments; accompanying clients to rnedical appointments; providing and facilitating ,
transportation to appointments; and ensuring interpreter services are acquired for all appointments, as
necessary.. ..

The Contractore will be providing these, services to refugees; resettled asylees: and secondary
migrants who have beisn In the United States for five years or less, with a focus on individuals who have
been In the United States two (2) years or less as well as any victims of traffickir>g. (SlV)'s or other (ORR)
designated eligible recipients arriving In the service areas:

Refugee Health Promotion services provided by the Contractors vaII
(1) Promote the health literacy of refugees to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.

Health Care System independently;

(2) Ensure refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health services in a timely and
culturally appropriate manner; .

(3) Increase refugee access to affordable health care over the long term; and
■ (4) Assist refugees become self-sufficient and decrease the need for public assistance..
The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services

required under this agreement using the following performance measures: «

o  100®/o of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be-provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

o  100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United States two (2)
years or less shall be prioritized.

o  100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be Identified and-prioritized for
translation as applicable.

o  100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and regularly throughout
the project period.

o 80% of refugees shall express an increased knowledge about health insurance
requirements including how and where to enroll In health insurance.

o' 80% Number of adults with increased knowledge about accessing and navigating US-
Health system
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•His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sunumj
and the Honorable Coi^dl
Page 3 of 3

o 80% Number of adults who know how to make and keep health appointments

o 80% Number of adults who can use public, Medicald and/or appropriate transportation
to get to medical appointments

o 80% Nurnber of adults who demonstrate Increased knowledge about at least one health
topic

o  100% Number of clients with health needs beyond initial exam scheduled for follow-up
care

.  o 100% Number of arrivals with mental health needs scheduled for appointment within 60
days of arrival

As referenced in Exhitxl-C-I. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, of these agreements,
the parties have the option to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugees with complex
health conditions may not receive the follow-up medical care they need in a timely, culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner. The inability ofrefuges to access necessary health care could result
in a lack of understanding and managing their health and health conditions.

. Area served; Statewide.

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576 FAIN#
'  In the event that the Federal (or Other) Funds become no.longer available, General Funds will

not be requested to supporl this program.

■  V ■ ■

Respectfully submitted,

. Lori A. Shibinette

■ • Commissior^er

Tht Deparlmeiil o( Health and Hnmon Servicee' M'ution la tojain and /omUitt
in preuidiitg opporliinilitt fof citittnt to achieve health and independence.
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

05-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER. OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY. REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Aftcentria Communltv Services. Inc. Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Total Contract

Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32.812.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Prooram Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Senrices 42200012 S 37.500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 4.688.00

Sub Total $ . 112,500.00

International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor#177551

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account^ Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 32.609.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for'Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 4,891.00

Sub Total .  42200012 $ 112,500.00

Overall Totall $ 225.000.001

Attachment - Bureau of Behavioral Health
Flnandal Oetait

Page 1 of l



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4708A489-6B2D-44D0-BC28-3C1DE1554104

FORM NUMBER P'37 (vtrtloo 12/11/2019)

SubJect:_New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program (SS-202I-OHE-0I-REFUG-01)

Noiice: This agrcemeni and ell of its anechmenis shall become public upon'submtssion to Governor end
Executive Council for approval. Any infoonaiion that is private, conndeniial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing (he contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I Stitte Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health artd Human Services

17 State Agency Address.

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3257

.1.3 Contractor Name

Asccnlria Community Services, Inc

• 1.4 Coniractor Address

14 East Worcester Street Suite 300

Worcester, MA, 01604, USA

1.5 Contractor Phone .
■ Number

(774)243-3900 '

1.6 Account Number

05-095-042-7922000-

42200012

1.7 Completion Date

August 14.2023

1.8 Price Limitation

SI.12,500

1.9' Coritraciing Officer for Slate Agency "

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

*1.11 'Contractor Signature .

.  Date: 3 1 \ l^ t^
1.12 . Name and Title ofContractor Signatory

CKlcf

1.13' Siat^gcncy SignatuiW' 1.14 Name and Title of Slate Agency'Sighaib^

■  M'iOCuiJL
1.15 Appt^ova! by the N.H. Department of Administrat 'ion, Division of Personnel 0/applicable) ■ t

\

By: ' . Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney GoKral (Form, Substance and Execution)

1.17 Approva^y the Governor and Executiw Council 0/oppllcahle)
Q&C Item number: G&C.Meeting Date;

Page 1 of4
Contractor Initials

Date
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2; SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particulaiiy
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
ctjnirary, and subject .to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of (he State ofNew Hampshire, if applicable,
(his Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on (he "date the Governor and Executive

Council approve, this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the'date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown In block 1.13 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contracior commences the Services prior to the
EfTective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to'
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk.of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
effective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including .without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any. costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specifledin block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding ^y provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of tlw Stale hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the avallabitiiy and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative .or'executive
action that reduces,- eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, end shall- have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement irnmediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds In that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified ar^ more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which' is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by (he State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbu^meni to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall-be (he only and the corhplete

comipensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than (he contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 8.0:7
through RSA 80:7< or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision In this Agreement to the
contraiy, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of (he Services, the
Contractor shalj comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state,' county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation-or duty upon the .
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue'to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
properly laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not'
discriminate against employed or applicants for employment
because of race, color, <%ligion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or natiorial origin and will take affirmaiive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access (o.any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all oiles, regulations
and Orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7. i The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in < the .Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, -and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so.under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized-in writing, during (he term of
this Agreement, and for a period .of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block -1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person; firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined efTon to
perform the Services to hire, any person wtio is a Slate employee -
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or -performance of this A^emcni. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concemihg the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shBll constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event
of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may

. take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defauli and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of

.  a greater or lesser spccificaiion of time, thirty (30) days from the
date ofiKe notice; and if the Event ofDefoult'is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective (wo (2) days after giving (he
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give (he Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default end suspending all payments to' be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to (he Contractor during (he
period frotrt the date of such'nolice until such time as (he State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set'off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of

, any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate (he
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
.any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with'
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall

>  be deemed a waiver of the right of (he State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of

-  Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days wrinen notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
ony reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the-
Contracting OfTicer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
deiail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to (hose of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT 8. In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement'.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY^

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, (he word ."data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. (his
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, ud docuntents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchas^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
ofthis Agreement forany'reason.
10.3 Conndentiility ofdaia shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement (he Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
erhployee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ofHcers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the Stale or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments .provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENT/DELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to (he State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph,, i Change of Control, shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates,' becomes the
direct or indirect owner of ffty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity Interests.'or combined voting
power of the (Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior wrinen notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of ell subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party-

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law.
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Slate, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabiliiies-and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State,, its ofllcers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may .be-claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contnctor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to tHe
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity ofthe State, which Immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance;

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than SI.000,000 per occurrence and S2.000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80%'or the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy fortns and endorserhems approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9. or his or her successor, a cenificate{s) of
insurance for alt insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certincaie(s) of ihsurartce
for all rcnew8l(s) of insurance required under this Ajgrecment no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certiHcatefs) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and'are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliancie with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A {' U'orkers'
Compensaiion"J.
15.2 To the extent (he Contractor is subj^l to the'requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection " with'
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish (he Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
28I'A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The Slate
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers' '
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at (he time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates
Post OfTlce'addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be emended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpret^ and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit ofthe parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording iised in this-Agreement Is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in /avor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brou^t ai^
maintained in New Hampshire SuperiorCourt which shall have
exclusivejurisdiciion thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A)'and/or attachments and amendment (hereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control'.

20.'TH1RD Parties, .the parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any.third parties and this Agreement shall' not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purpoMS only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of (he provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Intheeventanyoftheprovisionsofthis
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and -
understanding between the parties, end supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P'37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement-to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the

. State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall become effective on August
15,2020..

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Oate/Completion of Services, Is amended by adding
sut)paragraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. . The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years-
froni the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding,
subparagraph 12.3 as follows;

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreernents with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
action as necessary. The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement arid notify
the State of any Inadequale subcontractor performance.

SS-2021-OHE'01'REFUG-0) Eitfilbit A • RevHIons lo Standard Contract Proviaiona Contractor tnttiala.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Rdugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. statement of Work

1.1. The.Contractor shall provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall include, but are not
limited to, medical and mental health case management, health orientations,
health education, and health provider education. Services will ensure that
refugees; (1) obtain needed health (including mental health) care beyond the
Initial health screening; and (2) gain (he basic knowledge and skills they need to
navigate the U.S. health care system and to manage their own health aind health
care independently. Services will help to increase refugee access to health care
and to reduce gaps in services.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered statewide with a focus on the

geographic areas of Concord, Manchester, and Nashua.

1.3. The Contractor shall designate a case manager to -provide health (Including
mentar health) case management services to ensure refugees with complex
health conditions obtain needed^ health care beyond the. initial health exam.
Including appropriate health insurance.

1.4.The Contractor shall ensure case management services Include.' but are not
limited to:

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical and mental health appointments;-

.  1.4.2. Accompanying clients to medical appointments;

1.4.3. Providing and facilitating the provision of transportation to and from the
appointments;

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available as necessary
during appointments; and

1.4.5. Assisting refugees with obtaining appropriate health Insurance. ,

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
managernent services from the initial refugee health examination to all heeded
foliow-up care beginning after the completioh of the initial refugee health
exaniihation and/or on day ninety one (91) of resettlement (whichever is sooner),
to ensure there are no gaps in services and continuity of care.

1.6. The Contractor shall schedule an initial dental appoihtmenl for all refugee children.
(age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7.The Contractor shall conduct culturally and linguistically sensitive health
orientations vyhich shall Include, but not be limited to the following topics:

.  . 1.7.1. Navigating the U.S. health care system.

1.7.2. Health insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.

SS-202VOHE-0VREFUG<H Contractor InitiatS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B.

1.7.3. Privacy and consent laws.

1.7.4. The right to language assistance in health care settings and the role of
Interpreters. ' '•

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments, including but not limited
to;

• 1.7.5.1. Public transportation training; arid

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

1.7.6. Understanding types of health care providers including but not limited to:
✓

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers;

1.7.6.2. Specialists; and

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.

1.7.7. Understanding types of health care (e.g., preventive, urgent, emergency),
and when, where and how to access each type.

1.7.8. Understanding availability of and when, where and how to access
mental/behavioral health services, including treatment for substance use
•disorders.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointrnents.

1.7.10. What to bring to appointments:

1.7.11. Medication, including but not lirnited to:

1.7.11.1. The difference between prescriptions and over-the-counter
•  ' medication;

■1.7.11.2. Refills;

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions: and ^
1.7.11.4. Side effects.

1.8. The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services and translated
materials for the health orientations.

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate the
needs, of new refugee populations, with approval from the State. Refugee
Program.

1.10. The Contractor-shall maintain documentation of individual refugees who have
received health orientation services, including but not limited to the following:

1.10.1. The individual clients participating In the health orientation;
1.10.2. The topic(s) of orientation completed by each participant;'

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-01 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.11. The contractor shall conduct both group (defined as a minimum of two (2)
participants) and individual health orientations, including at least one home visit
to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting, and to
address unique issues and.concerns..

1.12. The Contractor shall provide, solely or In collabor^ation with other organizatioris.
at least six (6) group health education classes. The contractor shall:

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various refugee populations and
prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongoing basis;

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide health education
classes on the identified topics that are within their expertise;

1.12.3. Schedule the presenters:

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of Interpreter services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules; *

1.12.6. Health education session topics rnay Include, but are not limited'to:

1.12.6.1: Health insuranceterms. coverage requirernen'ts, options and the
enrotlrrient process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities, including but not limited to autism.

1.12.6.3. Women's health. .including but not limited to domestic violence
and reproductive health-

1.12.6.4. Men's health;

1.12.6.5. Emotional Wellness;

1.12.6.6. Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Trahsgender (LGBT) health;
1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene;

1.12.6.8. Vision health;

1.12.6!9. Nutrition and benefits,of exercise;

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

1.12.6.11.Tuberculosis risk reduction;

1.12.6.12.Fire safely.

1.12.7. The Conlractor shall provide health education in a culturally and
•  linguistically appropriate manner.

1.12.8. The Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education
sessions, to survey clients on the usefulness of the information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.
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New Hampshire Department of Hearth and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.13. The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.14. The Contractor shall support the provision of nonclinical interventions, such as
adjustment support groups, to promote refugee weliness and prevent suicide.

1.15. The Contractor shall participate in National Alliance on Mental Illness Mental
Health First Aide trainings and/or other similar professional development
opportunities, to Inform practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15).
communicate results, and make referrals to health care providers as needed.

1.17. The Contractor shall maintain relationships with the health (including mental
health) providers within the refugee resettlement network through, outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall include but are not limited to:

1.17.1, Refugee health needs and culture.

1.17.2. Barriers to care that may Include but are not limited to language, cultural
.. factors, and transportation issues.

, 1.17.3. Continued adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.17.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.18. The Contractor shall develop and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4)
- health care (including mental health) providers who are not in the refugee
resettlement network through outreach, meetings and education. Areas of focus
shall include, but not be limited to the following:

1.18.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.18.2. Barriers to care that.include, but are not limited to language and culture
barriers, and transportation issues.

1.16.3. CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the Initial domestic medical
examination.

1.18.4. National Standards for CLAS In health and healthcare.

1.19. The Contractor shall provide education and training to refugees at various
stages of resettlement about the availability of health tosurance through the
Marketplace and altemative sources.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or
other financial assistance options including but not limited to facilitating
applications.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUGr01 ^ Contractor IniUals,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT 8

1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee Health
Promotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following;

1:21.1. Develop and collect linguistically appropriate surveys/questipnnaires that
are built into health, sessions and trainings.

1.21.2. Track the following: ^

1.21.2.1. Number of referrals made;

1.21:2.2. Number of training sessions and parllclpants;

1.21.2.3. Number of consultations or point of contact with providers;
and

1.21.2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions.

1.21.3. Feedback with health service providers to learn how the coordination is
working and make adjustments as.necessary.

1.21.4. Intemal feedback with staff, particularly case managers (and other case
management specialists) to evaluate the relevance of the orientations to
implement necessary changes leading to anticipated Improvements.

1.22. The Contractor shall communicate any health screening results received,
which may be conducted by the Contractor.or by a third party,, concerning a
client, to medical providers as heeded.

1.23. The Contractor shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers, as
needed.

1.24. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of the following:

1.24.1. Overall number of refugees resettled in the reporting period.

1.24.2.' Number of initial domestic health examinations completed within thirty (30),
sixty (60) and ninety (90) days of arrival.

1.24.3. Number of refugees receiving. health and/or mental health case
management sen/ices, to address complex health conditions beyond the
initial domestic health examination.

1.24.4. The demographics of the refugees served, including gender, age, primary
language, and country fled.

1.24.5. Number of refugees referred for follow-up serviced related to Dental
Issues. Emergency Issues (ER), Tuberculosis. HIV. Mental Health,
Infectious Disease. Physical. Therapy, prenatal Care, Hearing Issues,
Vision issues, and other conditions identified by the NH State Refugee
Health Coordinator.

1.24.6. Number of refugees assisted in obtaining appropriate health Insurance -
both upon arrival, and at the time of transition off Refugee fi/Iedical
Assistance.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refusee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.25. The Contractor shall identify the primary health related issues of concern in
each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
limited to diabetes, hypertension, mental health and/or oral health concerns.,

1.26. The Coritractor shall provide all required reporting to the Department within
fifteen (15) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.27. The Cpntractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Department within
thirty (30) days following the completion of the.reporting period.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting at in-person meetings as
requested t)y the Department.

1.29. the Coritractor shall have the following staff:

1.29.1. One (1) Administrator; and

1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.30. The Coritractor shall participate In. trainings in order to understand health .
insurance coverage and enrollment requirements on both the slate and federal
leivel.

2. Reporting Requirements

2.1, The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to the Department within thirty
(30) days following the end of the reporting period, to include but not limited
to:

2.1.1. Number

2.1.2. Number

2.1.2.1.

2.1.2.2.

2.1.2.3.

2.1.3. Number

2.1.3.1.

2.1.3.2.

2.1.3.3.

2.1.4. Number

Thirty (30) days ofarrival; . .

Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

Ninety (90) days or more.

eiving initial health exam within the following time periods:'

Thirty (30) days of arrival;

Thirty.,(30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

Ninety (90) days or more.

:hildren age six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age that
have been screened for lead.

2.1.5. Number of children scheduled for first dental appointment within six (6)
months of arrival.

2;1.6. Number of cpents referred to the following:

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider;

2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;
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New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services
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EXHIBIT 8

2.1.6.3. Emergency room;

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;

2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. Pre-natal care provider; and

2.1.6.9. Other specialists.

2.1.7. Number of clients receiving services by country of origin.

2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case managernent services.

2.1.9. Number receiving mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number clients participating in an adjustment support group.

2.1.11. Number clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s) covered.

2.1.12. Number clients receiving health education and topic(s) covered.

2.1.13. Number of service providers receiving training.

2.1.14. Number of health case miaiiage.r trainings and toplc(s)/

2.2. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department within,
thirty (30) days following the period completion, and as required by graritor.

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program repoti to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period.

3. Perfomnance Measures

3.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually arid monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement;

I

3.1.1. 100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be
provided throughout the project period, as necessary.

3.1.2. 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United
States.two (2) years or less shall be prioritized.

3.1.3. 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified
and prioritized for translation as applicable.

3.1.4. 100% of ail Interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and
regularly throughout the project period. "

3.1.5. 100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who require
care beyond the initial medical examination shall receive case

• management, including but.not lirhlted to:
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EXHIBIT B

3.1.5.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical appointments;

3.1.5.2. Transportation sen/ices; and

3.1.5.3. Interpretation services.

3.1.6. 90% of refugees shall demor>strate increased knowledge about health,
insurance requirements Including how. when and where to enroll In health
insurance.

3.1.7. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge about accessing and
riavlgating US Health system.

3.1.8. 80% of adults will know how to make and keep health appointments.
3.1.9. 80% of adults will know how to use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate

transportation to get to medical appointments.
3.1.10. 80% of adults will demonstrate Increased knowledge of at least one health

topic:

3.1.11. 100% of clients with health needs beyond initial exam will be scheduled for
follow-up care."

3.1.12. 1.00% of arrivals with mental health needs will be scheduled for
appointment withln'Sp days of arrival.

3.1.13. A minimum of four (4) new relationships with providers outside of the
refugee resettlement network shall be established during each annual
project period.

3.1.14. A minimum of . four (4) meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network shall take.place during each annual project period.

3.2.The Contractor shall measure program outputs through the following which shall
.  include but not be limited to;

3.2.1. Number and percentage of new refugees' attending group health
orientations, and the topics completed during each session;

3.2.2. Number of percentage of new refugees' receiving a health home visit.
-  3.2.3. Number of referrals to health, mental and behavioral health or other

services.

3.3. The Contractor shall measure the health literacy among refugees and the
improvement of their understanding of their health and of the Arnerican health
system by utilizing a simple questionnaire offered at each workshop and
orientation.

3.4. The Contractor shall . track the number of individuals participating in and
•completing health education sessions, as well as the topics covered in each
session.

SS-202 l-OHE-OI -REFUG-01 Contractor Initials
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3.5. The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees receiving
-health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographics.

3.6. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers in the refugee
resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers outside the
refugee resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.7. The Contractor shall measure the effectiveness of support services provided to
refugees to increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health insurance
upon arrival and those educated about and referred for assistance in obtaining
appropriate health insurance when transHloning off Refugee Medical
Assistance.

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other key
stakeholders to adapt any performance targets if necessary.

3.9. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan, to the
Department for any-performance measure that was not achieved.

3:10. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery.

.  and policy based on successful outcomes.

3.11. The Contractor may be required to provide other key'data and metrics to the
Department, Including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

3.12. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
.  Department in a format specified by the Department.

4. Additional Terms

4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes .

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal legislation .
or court orders may have an impact on the Services described herein, the.
State has the right to modify' Service priorities and expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

4.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

f 2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFU6-01 Contractor (nittels
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4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
of the Contract shall include the following statement. "The preparatiori of
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract wHh the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in part by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Department
of Health and Human Sen/ices."

4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Department before printing, production, distribution or
use.

4.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all original
rnaterials produced, including, but not limited to;

4.3.3.1. Brochures,

4.3.3.2. Resource directories.

4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

4.3.3.4. Posters.

4.3.3.5. Reports.

4.3.4. The Contractor shall hot reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state, county and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers

■  pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facility. If any governmental license or permit shall be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Conlractpr will procure said license or permit, and will at all times
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license or permit. In
connection' with, the foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities
shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
shall be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

SS-202t.OHE-0V.REFUG-01 Contractor Initlats
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4.5. Eligibility Determinations

4.5.1. If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility of.lndlviduals such
eligibility determination shall t>e made in accordance with applicable,
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures.

4.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made end remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department.

4.5.3. In addition to the detemiination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient, of services
hereunder. which file shall Include all Infomiation necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other Information as the Department
requests. The'Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations that the Department

. may request or require.

4.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an
application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

6. f^ecorcfs

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that Indude, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the.
Contractor In the performance of the Contract, and all Income received or
collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,
without limilation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, Inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visft records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and eligibility
(Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to
the Department to obtain payment for such services.

5.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

SS-2021:OHE^l-REFUO.Ol Contractor Iniiials
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Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Sen/ices, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall, disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Termination Repotyrransltion Plan

6.1. In the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to.
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving sen/ices under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

6.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to!
any information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communication and

.  revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

6.3. In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are transitioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the State,

.  the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

6.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed

' communications in its Transition Plan submitted to the State as described
above.

7. Exhibits Incorporated

7.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

7.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In compliance
wiih the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Inforrhation
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties

SS.2021-OHE-01.-REFUG^01 ' Contractor Initials
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and is incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related tolhis Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

SS-2021-OME-01-REFUG-01 ■ ContrectorlnHiats.
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Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded with federal funds.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
In the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be In accordance with the approved
line Item, as specifred In Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C>4, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, wtiich identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The
Contractor shall ensure the Invoice Is completed, dated and. returned to the

. Department in order to Initiate payment..

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an .electronic signature and
emailed to laura.mcglashan@dhhs.nh.gov. or invoices rhay be mailed to:

Laura McGlashan, NH Stale Refugee Health Coordinator
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord, NH 03301 ,
(603)-271-2688

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and if sufficient
funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Forrn
Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State nojater than forty (40) days after the
contract completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Sjervices, In
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event

.  of non-compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to
the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satlsfactoriiy completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

Ascentiia Community Services. Inc. EsdilbltC Contractor initials.
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10. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation 'and adjusting
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

11. Audits

11.1. The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

11.1.1. Condition A • The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition 8 - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b. pertaining to
charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or
more.

11.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations to siubmit an annual financial audit;

. 11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative . Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shail submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the ciose of the Contractor's fiscal year.

11.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by ihe Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department a.ll payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

Ascanlrla Community Servkics. inc. ExNbiic Conuacior mntaD.

SS.202I-OHE-01-REFUG.OI Pa9o2of2 Dat«
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.); and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I . FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification b required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1969 regulations were amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a.grantee (and by inference, sub-granlees and sub-conlractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Depadment in each federal fiscal year in lieu Of certificates for
each grant during the federal Hscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a .
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. Febe
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health end Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will cdniinue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dbpensing. possession or use of a controlled substance is prohlbKed in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against ernployees for violation of such
prohibition:

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of dmg abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free vrorkplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

. given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in-the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a vjolation of a criminal drug

statuta occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writir^g, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otheiwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on v^ose grant activKy the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExNM 0 - Ceftiflc4lion reaarding Drug Free Vendor Inillab''
Workplace Requirements
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has designated a central point for the receipt of siKh notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who Is so convicted.
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amertded; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Stale, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3,1.4.1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sile(8) for the perforrhance of work done in
connection with the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file thai are not idenllTied here.

Vendor Name:

DatS' ■ ■ Na^ST

ExrtW 0 - Cenificslton ragarting Dnig Frsa Vendoi IrtitiaU;
Wwkpiaca Rtqulremenis
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-12.1. Government wide Guklance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.-12 of the General Provisions execute the following CerHfication;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HU^N SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-0
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX'
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, thai:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have beeri paid or will be paid by or on t>ehaH of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an'officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence ah officer or employee of any agisncy. a Member, of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
F^ral contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-

'  contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Discbsure. Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instruclbns. attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-f.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this cetlificalion be included m the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and ccbperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shaU certify and discbse accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certrTicatlon is a prerequisite for'rhaking or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.' Any person who falls to file the required .w
certification shall be subject to e civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

VertdorNamc: Ccmmu.M'kj
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPgNSIQH

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, end Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have'the Contractor's -
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certirication:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION ^
1 - By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certificatjon set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below wll] not necessariiy result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submU an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with (he NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this trarisaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or en explanation shall disqualify such per^n from participatibn in
(his transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material.representation of fact upon which reiiance was placed
when OHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingty rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federd Government. OHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defauH.

4. The prospective primaiy participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
. whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant leams

that its certificetion was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.-

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible.' "lower tier covered I
✓  transaction.' 'participant.' "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal." 'propbsal.'-and i

'voluntary excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions end I
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order .12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the 1
attached definitions. i

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting thb proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into. K shall not knowingly cr>ler into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partic^atlon In this covered transaction, unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposalthat it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Oebarment. Suspension, Ineligibiliiy end Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transactio.nmay rely upon a certffication of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous.' A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines (he eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant rr\ay. but is not requir^ to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in (he foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a-system of records
■In order to render In good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

F - CertjScaUon Retarding Oebermenl. Suspension Vendor bVlials
And Other ReipomlbOty Matters

•c»*w*«n«rij Pago 10(2 osle



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4708A489-6B2D-44D0-BC2B-3C1DE1S541O4

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit P

information of a partidpant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.^

10. Except for transactions euthorteed under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant In a
covered transaction krwwingly enters into e lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowMge erKi belief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not pTeserttly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction: yiolation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted.for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

. 11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal^ Slate or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. 6y signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge.and beli.ef that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmenl. declared ineligibie, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this tra.nsaction by any federal deparfment-or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is uriable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective parflcipani shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inetlglbility; end
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without m.odification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all sollcilatlons for lower tier covered transactions. .

VendorName: Ascc.iVitv Corinmun\V^ S«fviCCS

Date
OFfi'ctrTU Or<rCh

Exhibll P - Certification Regardlrtg Debarment. Suspension Vendor jnlUels
,  And Other Responslbtay Matters
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendof kJentiHed in Sec^on 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representatrve as Identified In Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions to execute the followino

. certification; • ^

Vendor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which'may Include: • •
- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of i 968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3709d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from'discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. Tl* Act
requires certain ̂ pienls to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Sefe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding ufxler this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the CIvi) Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basb of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 7&4.). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the AmeriMns with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibils
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, cortvnerdal facilitias, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,.1603, 1605-86). which prohibils
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally asdsted educatioo programs;

■  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106^7). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in progrems or activities receiving Federal financial assistanca. It does not irKlude
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R; pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Reguiatioris - OJJOP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Poiiclas
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations);.Executive Ordv No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-basad arxj neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Oepartmeni of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): and Whislteblower protections 41 U.S.C. ̂ 712 and The National Defense Authorization •
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee VVhislleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material represenlatlon of fact upon \«hlch reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violati.on of the certificalion shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl..

C««9ct»en « CoffWw fnarw^ h Fmm WrtaK/Wnott'i. Ifewwii« FUn^ScMd ■ - •
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearir^ on the grounds of race/color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health end Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

i •. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions -
Indicated above.

Vendor Name: finvNmiA»KjSc.vict^,Trnc.

Date'
die ff,-

R«v, IQ0VI4

ExtdbllG .
Vendor Inllisls

C>rt»cwen er wgunwina potRrtne ip ftem$ Nenoicnrrinswa £9,1^ TfuerwM tfravtSatM CronzMw
10 y#ltl WB ■ If fKttCKT*

Page 2 Of 2 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 4708A489-6B2D-44D0-BC2B-3C1DE1554104

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMEMTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also kncwn as the PitKChildren Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contract^ for by an entity and used routinely or regularty for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, If the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, ban, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's senrices provided In private residences, facilities funded soldy by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, end portions of facilities used forinpatient drug or alcohol treatment. FaUure
to comply with the provlsbns of the law may resuR in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SiOOO per day and/or the imposHlori of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Sectbn 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as idenltfied in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the folbwing
cerlificatbn:

1. By signing end submitting this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Lew 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1694.

Vendor Name:
Cimmuht'Kj

Date Name]^
TItlpr cvw't.f op**o"^^yO fficcr

Extilbii H - CertiricsUon Regardir^g Vendor IrUtials
EnvCfOftflierrtii Tobacco Smoka / ̂ | V /-
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABIUTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMEHT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and.
with the Standards for Privacy aruj Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business

- Associate' shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

0

(1) Peflnmons. . .

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has thenieaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
. of Federal Regulations.

'C. 'Covered Entitv' has the meaning oiven such term In sention ifin in.1 nf Tihe

Code of Federal Regulations.

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501. •

e. 'Data Aggregation' shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall have the same meaning as the term 'healtti care operations'"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security pf Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term 'individual' In 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(9).

J. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103: limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/^14 EiMM I - Controdor inlSait
Hetlih Insursnoe PorwWDfy A« \ "
Buslneu Astodtte Agreement n
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I. 'Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law' in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Parl 164, Subpart 0. and amendments thereto.

0. '(Jnsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not • .
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and Is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwjse defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act."

(2) Business Associate Use and Dlsctoaure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit

' PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy end Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
ill. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Businiess Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances ifrom the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially'and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PhI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. • The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and '
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibit t Contr«dorlnit)8b
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted ail
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in'violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. • The Business Associate shad notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate l>ecomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health-Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured'
protected health Information and/or any security Incident that may have an Irnpact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when It becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:-

■ 0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information Involved. Including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of.reHdentlfication;'

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information pr to whom the
disclosure was. made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated. . ■ ^

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. • The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received frorri. or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of .Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of Its business associates .that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExhtMU ContTKlOf InHialJ
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
.business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
conb^ct provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices.all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure ■
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine

- Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a vrritten request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Deisignated Record

. Set. the Business Asisociate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for .
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fultlll its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance witti 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business^Associate shall make available'
to Covered Enti^ such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfil) Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI In accordance wiUi 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonvarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individuars request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I.. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, of the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

3/2014 ExNWil Contradof Wtlalj
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obllaatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
' Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termlnatlori for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either imrriediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shail report the
vioiation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a.' Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time, to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to

- a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as In effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is.
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the r^uirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. • Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowiedges that It has no ownership rights
with, respect to the PHI provided by or createid on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply vnth HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhiblil Contredor^Utb
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SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Extiibit I or the application (hereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and corxlitions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit t regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or '
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

- Department of Heatth and Human Services

The State

Signature of Authorized Representative

lame of Authorized^eprName of Authorized/Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date

Joe.
Name of the Contractor

Sigftature ofAqthorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative .

Chief Op'ircxWi officer .
Title of Authorized Representative

Date

3/2014 ExHbUI
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CERTIFICATION REGARDINQ THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of IndlvldudI
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 end awarded on or after October 1,2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated'first-torsub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or-over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with .2 CFR Part 170 (Report'ng Subaward and Executive.Compehsation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award titiedescrjptlye of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS d)
10. Total compensation arid narrws of the top fh/e executives if:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues ere frbrn the Federal govemmenL end those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Informatioh is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must subrnit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, In which
the isward or award ̂ endment is made.
The Contractor identified in Section 1.3,of the. General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, PubRc Law 109*282 and Public Law 110*252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certificatjon:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined above to the NH
Department of H^lh and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Finandal Accountability end Transparency AcL

Contractor Name:

Dale . Nam^Tt^lhx^
Titlo: W

Exftbt J - CerttflasUon Rsgcrdlng Um Podtrai Funding -Contraelor InlUab.
Accountsbllty And Trsmpirancy Act (FFATA) Ccmplinca

cuo*on>e7»> Pt9«iot2 Otta ^
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FORMA

As the Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true end accurate.

.  Thw DUNS number for vour gnlltv la: %5S^5(o(pM

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual.gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub^rants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues rrom U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

I NO YES

If the answer to 92 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.76m(a), 76^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1886?

NO YES

If the answer to 03 above is YES. stop here

'  If the answer to 03 above is NO. please answer the following;

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follovtrs:

.Nam.e:

Name:

Name:

Name':

Name:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU'DHKS'MOrO

Edi!b(t J - C«rtlfic<tjon Rtgarding Iho Fedtral Funding Contractor tnitiab
AocountsPility And Trtnspirency Act (FFATA) Comptanco

Pago 2 of 2 ' . Date
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. •Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, .unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic.- With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section .
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
•  Incident" in section tvw) (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Ha.ndling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department '
of Commerce.

3. "Confidenlial Information" or 'Confidential Data" means all confidential information
•' disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical.' health, financial, public

assistance benefits and personal inforrriation including vrithout limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and

■ Personally Identifiable Informalioh.

'Confidential Information also includes any and ail information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

•  Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services • of which collection, disclosure, protection; and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI),, Social Security .Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
tjusiness associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy;
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software'characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V6. Losi update l(y09/1B ExhWlK Corttaclof Iniiiaij
DHHS Intonrtalion

Security Requlremenls
Page 1 019 Dale
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any r»€twork or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Depar^ent of information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and-
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI*) means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 369-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United

. States Department of Health and Human Services.

•  10. 'Protected Health information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §'
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" .shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards.developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute..

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

• A. Business Use and Disclosure Of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, .maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor.
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers.'employees and agents, must not-
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI In any manner that .would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V5.La8li4xJite ̂ CVOWIB ExhlbflK ConUaclorlnlllBlj
DHHS Infomistlan

S«aJrttyRequiw>en!»
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without Hrst notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

- 3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may hot use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit. Confidential
V Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
'  secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. RIe Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

. 6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cQrtined ground
• mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypt^ and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Last vpdaie 1(VD9/16 K Contractor inUah.
DHHS trtformallon
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile device($) or laptop from which Information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If.
End User is employlr»g an SFTP to transmit Conridential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sub-fofders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24'hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If-End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND OlSPOSlTION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS .

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data artd any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the .services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring- capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems

,  and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contrador agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees. Confidential Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and,
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, antl-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-matware utilities. The environmeril, as a

vs. last update tOX)9/16 Exhibit K Contractor Initlalt
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whole, must have aggressive irrtrusloivdelection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When ho longer In use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
In accordance vrith Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzatldn. or otherwise physically .destroying the media (for example. '

.  degaussing) as described In NISI Special Publication 800-88. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sanltizatlon, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Comrherce. The Contractor will document and certify .In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the. Department
upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to.
demonstrate data has been property destroyed and validate. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termihation of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data

'  by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain . proper security controls to protect Department
confidential Information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored In the deliveiy
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information lifecyde. where applicable, (from •
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

VS.U«lupd«let<yO»i8 ExhlMlK Contractor Inftinb
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3. The Conlractor will mainlain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems.that coliect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems ahd/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a

• program of an Internal process" or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at, a minimum
match those for the Contractor. Including breach notrficetion requirements.

7. The Contractor will work ivith the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and' computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department syslem(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate-pursuant" to 45
.CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey Is to enable the Department and
Conlractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement: The survey will be completed
ennually. or an alternate tirhe frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be corhpleted when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless

■ prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage, or loss resulting from the breach.,

•  • The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

vs. Last uodete KVOtf 18 ExitbliK ContractorInUats,
OKHS inforrnatlon .

Sccutly fiaqulrBmenti . .. ^
!  Pagaeof9 Date



DocuSign Envelope ID; 4706A489-6B2D-44D0-BC2B-3C1DE1S541O4

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Inforrnaticn Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential. Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy-Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://VAvw.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. ..The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need- such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

•  /»

1$. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. at>ove.
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent-disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send ernails containing Confidential Information only-if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.-

vs. Last update 1Q/0W18 ExhbtlK Contreclor Initials
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identiriers, etc.). .

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases.

•  ̂ such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Conridential Data must be maintained, used and

disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure,
this applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of 'their. End .Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, Including the privacy and s^urity requirements provided in herein. HIPAA.
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V.. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor rnust notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach. Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 • 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with a!) applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor yvill:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in-lhis Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

vs. Last update 1(V09/16 ExhibitK Cortractoi tniilals.
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. If so. Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

. \

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
. applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-0:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

OHHSPrlvacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer.

DHHSInfonnationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Last update 1<V0a/18 EihWlK Cortrador Infttaia X
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the New Harnpshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

This 1'' Amendment to the New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health
and Human Sen/ices (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and International Institute of
New England. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 2
Boylston Street 3rd Floor Boston, MA, 02116.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on May 6, 2020, (Item 15), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17 and Exhibit A Section 1.2, the
Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2023.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$117,187.50.

3. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit C-1, Budget Sheet
Amendment #1. which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

jt

International Institute of New Engiand, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in full force and

effect. This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/19/2020

Date

G—DocuSlgntd by:
Ann H. N. Landry

Name:'^'^" h. n. landry
Title. Associate commissioner

11/9/2020

Date

International Institute of New England, Inc.

DocuStQnbd by:

— 57A1EF1CF7AE459...

fsjame: Jeffrey Thielman

President & CEO

International Institute of New England. Inc. Amendment #1
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

'DocuSi^ncd by:

11/25/2020
•DSCA9702E32C4AE...

Date Name:Catherine pinos

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

International Institute of New Engiand, Inc. Amendment #1

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02-A01 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner. Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that INTERNATIONAL

INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND. INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on February 12, 2016. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have

been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739194

Certificate Number: 0005001024

lo.

o

<5^

4*

§

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 8th day of September A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

$h^frin . here^ certify that*
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

I

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the International Institute of New England
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 1 . 2015 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and votina

(Date)

VOTED; That Jeffrey Thielman. Chief Executive Officer and President (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Ik behalf of the Intemattonal Institute of New England to enter into contracts or agreements v/ithme State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the

fhrr«%/ /tftl amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
NpI?^Hamnch^ri -T f Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of

.h", evidence that the person(s) listed atxive currenUy occupy the
iS on ?h» = '0 bind the corporaUon. To the extent that there are any
all such liS^ra^lT-lss^rl "^"^P^^ire,

Dated: 11 \f-
Sjgf^tijreofSected _
Name: Deborah Shufri
Tilie: Board Clerk

?ev. 03724/20

Scanneid with CamScanner
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATS (mvoorrrrr)

09/16/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTrUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If (he certificate holder Is en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sul^ect to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate doe* not cortfer riotits to the certificate holder In lieu of such endors*ment(s).

eROOucen

willla Te«r«i* VaCton Nocthaaat. Inc.

e/« 24 Cantury BivO

e.o. a«a sostsi

Kaahvilla. TW aHIOSlll DSA

Hlllii Towara Wataon Cectlficata Canter

a«v :-677-945-737I (f" ̂  1-666-467-2376
aomam; cartiflcataalwlllla .e««

tNSUHCIUSIAarORDlNC COVEJUCE NAiCa

MSuneSA; Philadelphia Indaanity Inauranea Caa^any 160S6

MSURCO

Intarnatlenal InttituM e( Haw Inglana, Xno.

2'BoylaCon etcaat, Sta. 1

seacen, ha 02114

MSURtRB;

MSUReRC;

MSURER 0:

MSUHCH E:

INSURER r ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO wmiCH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IHSR

VTR TYFB oa mtURANCe miirwi POLlCVNUWaER LIMITS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL OENERAL LIABILITY

IE OCCUR

T PHPK3120467 OS/OS/2030 03/03/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE t  1,000,000

1 CLAJUS-MAC 1  ■ 1,000,000

UEOEXP (Any ona eartan) t  20,000

PERSONAL i AOV INJURY t  1.000,000

[wn. AGOREGATt LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE t  3,000,000

□POLICY □ jISt LJ toe
OTHER:

PROOUC T S • COUPlOP AGO t  3,000,000

n s

1 AVTOHOSILE lubrjty COMBINED SINGLE UUIT
IFa anravrnt %

1 ANY AUTO 6O0R.Y INJURY (Ptr paraon) %

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HlREO
AUTOS ONLY

sc
AL

:hE0ULED
FTOS
1N.OWNEO
itosonlv

BODAY INJURY (Pw aedMM) t

K
AL

PROPERTY OAMACe .
IPw itelBanil I

%

A
X LWeRELLALIAe 1

EXCESS UAB [
X, OCCUR

claims-aiaoe PB08714379 OS/OS/2030 03/09/2021
EACH OCCURRENCE I  8,000,000

AGGREGATE 1  S.000,000

DED 1 X 1 RFTPMTlONl t

WORHERt COUPENSATtOM
AND eUPLOYEnS'LIABIUTY
ANYPROPRlETOR/PABrNER®t£CUTlve |—1
OFnCERMEUSEREXCLUDCO?
(Hmaawy in NMJ
H irM. dtacrfea undw
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATXINS baiow

NfA

1 STATUTE 1 1
E.L.EACH ACCIDENT %

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMnXlYEEI

E.L. DISEASE • POLICV LIMIT i

OeSCRlPnONOr OP(RATON9rLbCATXWS'veHlCL£8 IACORO let. AadtUeAH RamafM Se>ia«il«.ma)r ba •tuettad Hmara laaeaMrnulrwe)
Thia volda and Raplacaa Pravloualy laauad CarClClcaCa Datad 09/01/2020 WITH ID: tri7630444.

NaoMd Inaurad Includaa Zntacnational instituta of Haw Haotpahira, Inc. and Incacnatlonal Inatituta oC Lowall, Inc.

NM DapacCaant of Haalth 4 Ruaian Sarvieat 129 Plaaaant Stcaat, Brown Building Concord, NH 03301 ara includad aa
Additional Inaurada aa caapacta to Canaral Liability.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Btata of Naw Haopahica
Dapartaant of Haalth and Huaan Sarvieat
129 Plaaaant Straat

Concord, Kfl 03301-3837

SHOULD AffY OF THS ABOVE DESCRIBED POUClES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTKE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORlZeO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)
C1986-2016ACORD CORPORATION. All right* reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
•a >0: 20096242 utci: 1016626
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ACORD'

INTEINS-OS

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

PCONDQN

OATB nuMxymY)

9/23/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an sndorsemenL A statement on
this certlflcste does not confer rtqhts to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement/e).

pttooucea License #1760862
HUB Intorrrstlonsl New England
600 Longwator Drive
Norwell.MA 02061-9146

e^i: (781) 792-3200 ho,.(781 ) 792-3400

INSUftSRlSt AFFOnOINO COVt-AAOi: MArCt

Msuaen a ; Travelers Property Casualty Company of Amerlcs 25674

•rsuKco

Intsmatiorval Institute Of New England, Inc.
2 Boylston streeL 3rd floor
Boston, MA 02116

iwsunen e:

•rswea c:

W9URPNO;

■HIUenB;

erSUItERF:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOWHAVE SEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATEO. NOTVMTHSTANOjNG ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONOmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. .
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oesCAlFTXM OS OfCIWnOMS / LOCAhONS 1 VEMCLfiS (ACOlU) 1»1. AMSortil Rtfiwrt* Sclwde*. nwy M •mcM H men tpatu b raquhvd]
New Hampshire Workers Compensation policy.

Slats of NH
Department of Haalth and Human Sorvicee
129 Ploaaant Stroet
Concord, NH 03301-3657

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE 0E8CRIBSD POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED M
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED RCPReseirTATive

ACORO 25 (2016/03) e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rsssrved.
The ACORD name and logo ars registered marks of ACORD
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International
Institute of
New England

Mission Statement

The mission of the International Institute of New England is to create opportunities for refugees and

immigrants to succeed through resettlement, education, career advancement, and pathways to

citizenship.
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International
Institute of
New England

imiT

YEARS of WELCOMING

NEW AMERICANS

Financial Statements

September 30,2019 and 2018
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.
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A  50 Washington SireelA AC^PAc Westborough, MA 01581
nWWK^VrXO 508.366.9100
great minds {great hearts aafcpa.com

independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of

International Institute of New England, Inc.:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of International Institute of New England, Inc.
(a Massachusetts nonprofit corporation), which comprise the statements of financial position as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities and changes in net assets, cash
flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally aaepled in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stales of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether, due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of International Institute of New England, Inc. as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted In the United States of America.

■J
Wellesley, Massachusetts
February 11, 2020

Page 1
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND. INC.

Statements of Financial Position

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of lease incentive

Deferred revenue

Fund held for others

Total current liabilities

Deferred Rent and Lease Incentive, net of current portion

Total liabilities

Net Assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Operating

Property and equipment

Total without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

S  66,190,

372,088

110,782

84,864

Assets 2019 2018

Current Assets:

Cash S  303,109 S  432,887-
Short-term investments 600.000 800,000

Contracts, contributions and other receivables 940,079 713,203

Prepaid expenses and other 75,131 113,891
Fund held for others

- 47,000

Total current assets 1,918,319 2,106,981

Investments 6.389,743 6,595,749

Property and Equipment, net 1,728,194 1,895,424

Security Deposits 100,434 100,434

Total assets S 10,136,690 S 10,698,588

S  43,929

326,886

110,782

60,803

47,000

633.924 589,400

857,417 951,257

1,491,341 1,540,657

7,535,501 8,016,351

971,188 1,027,634

8,506,689 9,043,985

138,660 113,946

8,645,349 9:157,931

5 10,136,690 S 10,698,588

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 2
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INTERNATIONAl INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC

S(3teinenu of Activiiles and Changes In Net Assets
Fof the Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues:

Contract services -  S 3,694,803 5 S 3,694,803 5 3,067,101 5 5 3,067,101

Grants and contributions 1.779,756 392,684 2,172,440 1,436,205 332,054 1,768,259

Donated goods and services 1,062,113 . 1,062,113 788,778 .  . 788,778

Program service fees 356,907 . 356,907 161,481 - 161,481

Interest, dividertds and other 166,086 - 166,086 188,388 • 188,388

United Way allocation 60,000 . 60,000 92,171 . 92,171

Net assets released from program restrictions 367,970 (367.970) 302,059 (302,059)

Total revenues 7,487,635 24,714 7,512,349 6,036,183 29,995 6,066,178

Eipenses:

Program services 5,777,290 - 5,777,290 4.664,245 4,664,245

General and administrative 1,351,264 - 1,351,264 1.407,189 • 1,407,189

Fundraising 1,079,977 - 1,079,977 764,120 - 764.120

Total expenses 8.208,531 8,208,531 6,835,554 6,835,554

Changes in net assets from operations (720,896) 24,714 (696,182) (799,371) 29,995 (769,376)

Net Investment Gain 192,629
•

192,629 269,136 .  269,136

Loss on Disposal of Property and Equipment (9.029) (9,029) . .

Changes in net assets (537,296) 24,714 (512,582) (530,235) 29,995 (500,240)

Net Assets;

Beginning of year 9,043,985 113,946 9,157,931 9,574,220 83,951 9,658,171

End of year 5 8,506,689 5  138,660 5 8,645,349 S 9,043,985 5  113,946 5 9,157,931

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 3
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND. INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended September 30, 20i9 and 2018

2019 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Changes In net assets
.  Adjustments to reconcile changes in net assets to net cash

used In operating activities;

Net investment gain

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Depreciation

Amortization of lease incentive

Changes in operating assets and liabilities;
Contracts, contributions and other receivables

Prepaid expenses and other

Security deposits

•Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Deferred rent

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sale/transfer of investments

Acquisition of property and equipment .

Investment purchases

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net Change in Cash
I

Cash:

Beginning of year

End of year

S  (512,582) S (500,240)

(192,629)

9,029

282,936

(110,784)

(226,876)

38,760

22,261

45,202

24,061

16,944

(603,678)

473,900

(129,778)

432,887

(269,136)

255,324

(110,784)

163,904 .

(88,299)

(3,692)

15,471

18,441

27,307

29,194

(462,510)

775,050 774,950

(124,735) (254,846)
(176.415) (181,415)

338,689

(123,821)

556,708

S  303,109 S 432,887

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 4



DocuSign Envelope ID; 89DF0B6C-AB15-4533-9302-728EE2D34080

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: E945E571.9CAM82F>9068-964302093EEE

INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND. INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended September 30, 2019

(With Summarized Comparative Totals for the Year Ended September 30, 2018)

2019 2018

General

and

Program Adminis

Services trative Fundralslng Total Total '

Personnel and Related:

Salaries S 2,492,807 S  736,209 s 515,678 S 3,744,694 5 3,234,291

Donated services 913,115 • - 913,115 663,746

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 470,743 144,123 98,256 713,122 561,924

Purchased and contracted services 120,332 122,337 16,383 259,052 263,813

Staff training 3,567 4,595 5,149 13,311 7,059

Recruitment 1,566 2,314 - 3,880 11,032

Total personnel and related 4,002,130 1,009,578 635,466 5,647,174 4,741,865

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities 417,070 50,445 54,643 522,158 517,951

Depreciation 151,394 34,316 16,148 201,858 190,088

Equipment rental 16,393 968 780 18,141 13,995

Repairs and maintenance . 9,561 6,899 - 16,460 2,256

Total occupancy 594,418 92,628 71,571 758,617 724,290

Other;

Client assistance 717,364 - - 717,364 493,744

Special events • ■ 295,880 295,880 161,215

Donated goods 148,998 - • 148,998 125,032

Professional fees - 98,348 - 98,348 137,752

Depreciation 63,141 9,340 8,597 81,078 65,236

Supplies and materials 68,263 . 9,168 2,418 79,849 70,169

Travel, meetings and conferences 41,013 22,603 12,626 76,242 76,958

Service charges 7,305 51,894 14,813 74,012 55,732

Telephone 64,461 3,366 4,612 72,439 63,547

Insurance 17,079 35,686 - 52,765 52,866

Dues and subscriptions 9,780 14,555 11,687 36,022 21,732

Printing 8,587 117 15,067 23,771 18,772

Advertising 16,049 1,041 17,090 7,281

Postage 4,872 1,841 6,199 12,912 8,643

Storage 9,661 334 . 9,995 10,297

Miscellaneous 4,169 1,806 ■ 5,975 423

Total other 1,180,742 249,058 372,940 1,802,740 1,369,399

Total expenses S 5,777,290 . S 1,351,264 s 1,079,977 5 8,208,531 5 6,835,554

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these statements. Pages
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGUND, INC.

Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Program

General

and

Admlnls-

Services tratlve Fundralsing Total

Personnel and Related:

Salaries S 2,102,635 $  788,954 S 342,702 S 3,234,291
Donated services' 663,746 • . 663,746

Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 362,396 141,272 58,256 561,924

Purchased and contracted services 88,022 103,633 72,158 263,813
Staff training 3,345 1,335 2,379 7,059
Recruitment 6,433 4,599 - 11,032

Total personnel and related 3,226,577 1,039,793 475,495 4,741,865

Occupancy:

Rent and utilities 412,452 61,743 43,756 517,951

Depreciation 142,567 32,315 15,206 190,088

Equipment rental 11,602 1,561 832 13,995
Repairs and maintenance 143 2,113 -  . 2,256

Total occupancy 566,764 97,732 59,794 724,290

Other:

Client assistance 493,744 - 493,744

Special events • - 161,215 161,215
Donated goods 125,032 - . 125,032
Professional fees • 137,752 - 137,752
Depreciation 45,587 9,444 10,205 65,236

Supplies and materials 40,413 27,232 2,524 70,169

Travel, meetings and conferences 51,564 18,446 6,948 76,958

Service charges ' 12,220 31,301 12,211 55,732

Telephone 56,080 4,177 3,290 63,547
Insurance 17,753 35,113 - 52,866

Dues and subscriptions 5,394 4,262 12,076 21,732
Printing 2,964 100 15,708 .18,772
Advertising 5,556 • 1,725 7,281
Postage 4,300 1,414 2,929 8,643
Storage 10,297 - 10,297

Miscellaneous - 423 - 423

Total other 870,904 269.664 228,831 1,369,399

Total expenses S 4,664,245 S 1,407,189 ,S 764,120 S 6,835,554

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. Page 6
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

1. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS

International Institute of New England, Inc. (the Institute) is a nonprofit organization that
provides assistance to the immigrant and refugee populations of Massachusetts and New
Hampshire. In fiscal years 2019 and 2018, there were approximately 2,500 and 1,800
unduplicated people, respectively, from approxirriately 100 countries that beneHted from the
Institute's services, gaining the knowledge and skills necessary for their integration into
American life. The Institute's services include English and literacy classes, citizenship education,
job training and placement, legal aid and counseling services, and case management.

The Institute is exempt from Federal income taxes as an organization (not a private foundation)
formed for charitable purposes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). The
Institute is also exempt from state income taxes. Contributions made to the Institute are
deductible by donors within the requirements of the IRC.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

The Institute prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
standards and'principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (ASC).

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

During fiscal year 2019, the Institute adopted FASB's Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-
14, Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entities. This ASU modified the current guidance over several criteria, of which the following
affected the Institute's financial statements:

•  Net assets are segregated into two categories, "with donor restrictions" and "without
donor restrictions", as opposed to the previous requirement of three classes of net
assets (see page 11).

•  Qualitative and quantitative information relating to management of liquidity and the
availability of financial assets to cover short-term cash needs within one year from the
statement of financial position date (see Note 10).

•  A more detailed explanation of the methods used to allocate costs among program and
supporting services (see page 9).

The adoption of this ASU did not impact the Institute's net asset classes, results of operations, or
cash flows for the year ended September 30, 2018. This ASU has been applied retrospectively to
all periods presented. In accordance with the ASU, the Institute has elected to omit disclosures
about liquidity and availability of resources for fiscal year 2018.

Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
program services are reported as revenues and expenses in the accompanying statements of
activities and changes in net assets. Non-operating activity includes net investment gains and a
loss on disposal of property and equipment.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance'with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affea the reported amount of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Page 7
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property and Equipment and Depreciation

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of
donation. Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Estimated
Useful Life 2019 2018

Lesser of life of

Leasehold improvements lease or 10 years $ 1,928,778 $1,891,175
Furniture and equipment 3-10 years 589,571 525,374
Vehicles 5 years 23.064 23.064

2,541,413 2,439,613
Less • accumulated depreciation 813.219 544.189

Net property and equipment 5 1,728.194 5 1.895.424

Depreciation expense was $282,936 and $255,324 for the years ended September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is recorded based on management's analysis of specific
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, if any. No allowance for
doubtful accounts was deemed necessary as of September 30, 2019 or 2018.

Cash

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash does not include cash held in the
investment portfolio.

Fair Value Measurements

The Institute follows the accounting and disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair Value
Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilities. Fair value is defined as the price that the
Institute would receive upon selling an asset or pay to settle a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants.

The Institute uses a framework for measuring fair value that Includes a hierarchy that •
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is
broken down into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Institute.
Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use In pricing the
financial instrument, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs are Inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the financial Instrument developed based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset developed based on the best information available.

Pages
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The three-tier hierarchy of inputs Is as follows:

Level 1 • Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices In active markets for identical assets
at the measurement date.

Level 2 • Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly
or indirectly, including inputs In markets that are not considered to be active.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable and which require significant judgment or
estimation.

An asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any input that
Is significant to the fair value measurement.

Investments

Investments are recorded In the financial statements at fair value. If an Investment is directly
held by the Institute and an active market with quoted prices exists, the market price of an
identical security is used to report fair value. Reported fair values of shares in mutual funds are
based on share prices reported by the funds as of the last business day of the fiscal year. The
Institute's Interest In a limited liability partnership is reported at the net asset value (NAV)
reported by fund managers, which is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value, unless
it is probable that all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from
NAV. As of September 30, 2019 and 2018, the Institute had no plans to sell this investment.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and contributions without donor restrictions are recognlzed as revenue without donor
restrictions upon receipt or when unconditionally pledged. Contract service revenue and
program service fee revenue are recognized when services are performed and costs are
incurred.

Donor restricted grants and contributions are recorded as revenue with donor restrictions when
received or unconditionally pledged. When a donor restriction Is met (I.e., when a purpose
restriction is met or a time restriction ends), net assets with donor restrictions are transferred to
net assets without donor restrictions as net assets released from restrictions.

All other revenue Is recognized as earned.

Expense Allocations

Program expenses Include direct expenses, as well as indirect expenses, which are allocated
based upon management's estimate of the percentage attributable to each program.

Certain categories of expenses are attributable to more than one program or supporting
function and are allocated on a reasonable basis that Is consistently applied. The expenses that
are allocated are personnel and related, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time
and effort; occupancy and depreciation, which are allocated on a square footage basis; and
other operating expenses, which are allocated based on management's estimate of usage.

Page 9
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30. 2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Advertising Costs

Costs incurred for producing and communicating advertising are expensed when incurred and
are reflected as advertising on the accompanying statements of functional expenses.
Advertising expense was $17,090 and $7,281 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

Donated Goods and Services

The Institute receives donated goods and services in various aspects of its program services.
The value of the donated items is based on values assigned or estimates made by the donors.
Donated goods include food and clothing; and donated services include legal, teaching, and
consulting work. Donated items received were as follows:

2019 2018

Donated services $ 913,115 $ 663,746
Donated goods 148.998 125.032

S 1-Q67.113 S 788 778

The Institute also receives a substantial amount of donated administrative services. Many
individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that help the Institute accomplish
its goals. These services do not meet the criteria for recognition as contributed services under
U.S. GAAP and, accordingly, are not included in the accompanying financial statements.

Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 11, 2020, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued. There were no events that met the criteria for

recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists of contract advances. These amounts will be recognized as revenue
as the services are provided and costs are incurred.

Income Taxes

The Institute accounts for uncertainty in income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income
Taxes. This standard clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statements regarding a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Institute has determined that there
are no uncertain tax positions which qualify for either recognition or disclosure In the financial
statements at September 30, 2019 or 2018.

Page 10
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Assets

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions:

Net assets without donor restrictions are those net resources that bear no external restrictions
and are generally available for use by the Institute. The Institute has grouped its net assets
without donor restrictions into the following categories:

Operating • represents funds available to carry on the operations of the Institute.

Property and equipment • reflect and account for the activities relating to the Institute's
property and equipment, net of related liabilities.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions:

The Institute receives contributions and grants that are designated by donors for specific
purposes or time periods. These contributions are recorded as net assets with donor
restrictions until they are either expended for their designated purposes or as the time
restrictions lapse. Net assets with donor restrictions as of September 30. 2019 and 2018, are
purpose restricted.

3. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Institute has a defined contribution retirement plan covering all eligible employees over the
age of twenty>one who have completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service within each of
their first two years of employment. Employee contributions are vested immediately into the
plan upon eligibility. The Institute made S74,120 and $43,36S of matching contributions to the
plan during the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which are included in
' payroll taxes and fringe benefits in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

4. INVESTMENTS

Investments, which are stated at fair value (see Note 2) in the accompanying statements of
financial position, are as follows:

2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market funds S 45,216 $ - $ - S 45,216
Mutual funds:

Equities 4,431.162 • • 4,431.162
Fixed income 1.244.737 ^ 1.244.737

^ 5.721.115 S ^ S ^ 5,721,115

Limited liability partnership (see page 12) 1.268.628

Total investments S 6.989.743

Page 11
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

4. INVESTMENTS (Continued)

2018

Money market funds
Mutual funds:

Equities
Fixed income

Level 1

S  435,546

"4,307,488
1.464.108

g 6-707-142

Level 2 Level 3 Total

Limited liability partnership (see below)

Total investments

S • 435,546

4,307.488
1.464.108

6,207.142

1.188.607

S 7 395.749

In accordance with Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-07. the institute's investment in a
limited liability partnership is valued at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent)
practical expedient and has not been classified in the, fair value hierarchy. The fair value
amounts presented in the above tables are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value
hierarchy to the amounts presented in the statements of financial position (see Note 2).

Investments are reported in the accompanying statements of financial position as current or
long-term assets based on management's intent with respect to the use of the investments. At
September 30. 2019 and 2018, $600,000 and $800,000, respectively, were reported as current
investments as management's intent is to use these funds for operations in the subsequent
year.

The investments are not insured and are subject to market fluctuation.

CONCENTRATIONS

The institute maintains its cash balances with a couple banks. The Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insures balances at each bank up to certain amounts. At certain times during
the year, cash balances exceeded the insured amounts. The institute has supplemental
coverage at one bank, which insures the portion of deposits in excess of the FDlC's limit. The
Institute has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes the Institute is
not exposed to any significant credit risk on its operating cash balance.

Funding agencies and donors exceeding 10% of the institute's operating revenue and support
(excluding donated goods and services) or contracts, contributions and other receivables as of
and for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, are as follows:

Operating
Revenue

Contracts,
Contributions

and Other

Funder and SuDDort % Receivables %

2019 2018 2019 2018

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 17% 18% 19% 21%

U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants 16% 16% 18% 6%

State of New Hampshire 7% 10% 6% 7%

Private Donor '% 2% -% 14%
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to financial Statements
September 30, 2019 and 2018

6. - FUNDING

The Institute received approximately $2,640,000 and $2,288,000 of its funding from government
agencies for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, all of which are
subject to audit by the specific government agency. In the opinion of management, the results
of such audits, if any, will not have a material effect on the financial position of the Institute as
of September 30, 2019 and 2016, or on the changes in its net assets for the years then ended.

7. LEASE AGREEMENTS

The Institute leases its main office space in Boston, Massachusetts under an agreement that
runs through July 2026. Monthly lease payments for fiscal years 2019 and 2018 were
approximately $41,000 and $40,000, respectively, and increase throughout the term of the
lease. The Institute records rent on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The
difference between the monthly lease payments and the related rent expense for a given year is
recorded as deferred rent. The straight-line rent expense combines the escalation amounts and
an initiai three month rent free period. At September 30, 2019 and 2018, deferred rent was
$211493 and $194,249, respectively, and is Inciuded in deferred rent and lease incentive in the
accompanying statements of financial position.

The lease agreement also included a tenant improvement allowance of $1,107,822 in the form
of a reimbursement for construction and related costs incurred by the Institute for leasehold
improvements. This improvement allowance is reported as a liability and is being amortized
over the lease term. The improvement allowance is included in deferred rent and lease
incentives in the accompanying statements of financial position. Amortization of the lease
incentive was $110,784 during each of the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, and is
netted with rent and utilities in the accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The Institute leases program and administrative space under various operating leases and
tenant-at-will agreements. These leases expire at various dates through January 202S. The
leases require the Institute to maintain certain insurance coverage and pay for its proportionate
share of real estate taxes and operating expenses.

Faciiity rent expense under all leases was approximately $500,000 and $494,000 for the years
ended September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which is included in rent and utilities in the
accompanying statements of functional expenses.

The Institute also has a copier lease with monthly payments through June 2022.

Future minimum lease payments under the lease agreements for the next five fiscal years are as
follows;

2020 $ 622,396
2021 $ 617,014
2022 $ 587,850
2023 $ 557,880
2024 $ 553,247

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSAaiONS

The Institute's President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is also a member of the Board of.
Directors. Compensation and employee benefits for services provided as the President and CEO
are determined by the independent members of the Board of Directors and are based on
performance objectives.

The Institute's Chief FInanciai Officer Is also the Institute's Treasurer.
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INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTE OF NEW ENGLAND, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

9. FUNDS HELD FOR OTHERS

Funds held for others represent amounts held by the Institute on behalf of another agency. This
arrangement ended during fiscal year 2019-

10. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Institute's financial assets available within one year from the statement of financial position
date for general operating expenses are as follows:

Financial assets:

Cash S 303,109
Short-term investments 600,000
Contracts, contributions and other receivables 940.079

1,843,188
Less - purpose restricted cash and grants receivable 138.660

Total financial assets and liquidity resources
available within one year S 1.704.528

The Institute Is substantially supported by grants and contributions without donor restrictions
and contraa service revenue. As part of the Institute's liquidity management, the Institute has a
policy to structure Its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and
other obligations come due.

11. RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts In the fiscal year 2018 financial statements have been reclassified to conform
with the fiscal year 2019 presentation.
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MEGAN CLARK

EDUCATION

Master of Applied Science, Johns Hopkins Bloomberg School of Public Health Expected May 2021
Humanitarian Health

Bachelor of Science, University of New Hampshire May 2017
Major: Social Work; Minors: Psychology, justice Studies

WORK EXPERIENCE
International Institute of New England, Manchester NH June 2020 - Present
Community Services Manager
•  Recruit and supervise staff, interns, and volunteers on community services team
•  Offer immediate support to vulnerable refugee and immigrant families experiencing crisis
•  Maintain strong partnerships with grantors, community organizations, and local government
•  Ensure compliance with program contracts and complete reports for funders
•  Manage all community services programming and supervise client-related expenditures

International Institute of New England, Manchester NH October 2017 - June 2020
Case Specialist, Preferred Communities

•  Provided vulnerable refugee and immigrant families with comprehensive case management
services to promote self-sufficiency and successful integration into their communities

•  Conducted regular home visits with clients facing significant barriers to self-sufficiency
•  Assessed clients experiencing mental health crisis and facilitated referrals as needed
•  Outreached to community partner agencies to provide education about resettlement
•  Developed therapeutic and educational group programming for vulnerable refugee women in

collaboration with local healthcare providers and domestic violence crisis centers

International Institute of New England, Manchester NH June 2017 - October 2017
Case Specialist, Employment Services
•  Conducted intakes with newly arrived refugee clients to discuss career goals, identify appropriate

opportunities, and create individualized employment plans
•  Assisted clients in achieving employment goals through resume creation, application assistance,

interview preparation, job skills training, and post-employment support
•  Built and maintained strong working relationships with employers and community partners

The Chase Home for Children, Portsmouth NH August 2016 - October 2017
Residential Counselor

•  Provided direct supervision and support to adolescents living in the residential facility
•  Enforced program expectations to maintain a safe, nurturing environment
•  Developed therapeutic, educational, social, and employment-based programming for residents
•  Provided individual counsel to residents facing difficult or crisis situations

UNH Office of Institutional Research and Assessment, Durham NH September 2013 - July 2016
Lead Institutional Research Assistant

•  Trained, scheduled, and supervised the team of three to five student employees each semester
•  Collaborated with supervisors on data visualization projects using MS Office and Tableau
•  Analyzed trends and created data visualizations using sensitive university data

LEADERSHIP EXPERIENCE
University of New Hampshire, Social Work Department September 2018 - Present
Advisory Council Member & Guest Lecturer



DocuSign Envetope ID; 89DF0B6C-AB15-4533-9302-728EE2D34080

rMi-lr-Y—P-I-I-I-A-N-O
• Master of Social Work •

PROFESSIONALSUMMARY

• Bilingual (Spanish/English) nonprofit professional with strengths in program development, management
and evaluation: innovative social policy; and community organizing

• Experienced in observing, redesigning, and improving human interaction with systems
• Dedicated to creating sustainable systems change to better promote the dignity of people and

communities

• Passionate about social and racial justice

EDUCATION '
2016-2019 • Boston College School of Social Work (Chestnut Hill. MA)

Master of Social Work (MSW)

Macro Practice, Children, Youth & Families

Certificate in Policy & Community Organizing, 2019

Latinx Leadership Initiative

0 Bilingual program to develop social work leaders equipped to work with the Latinx community on

sustainable solutions to complex problems.

CPA: 3.71

2008-2012 • Fairfield University (Fairfield, CT)

Bachelor of Arts, International Studies

Honors Program

Minor in Latin American & Caribbean Studies

Minor in Spanish

CPA: 3.75

EXPERIENCE

11/2020- International Institute of New England (Manchester, NH)
present Family Services Specialist

• Promote the health and wellbeing of new and vulnerable refugees and increase access to

health systems over the long term,

• Assist refugee students maximize academic functioning and improve family's overall
wellbeing. Serve as a bridge between school districts and refugee and immigrant families.
• Work with Community Services Manager to assess refugee families' needs and develop new

programming.

• Provide comprehensive case management services to clients including case planning, home
visits, program enrollment, advocacy, accompaniment and referrals to relevant health, social,

housing, educational, and employment-related services.

3/2016- Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center (Lebanon, NH)
6/2020 Patient Navigator & Medical Interpreter, Independent Contract

• Worked with supervisor to research, design, develop, and implement innovative dual

Interpreter/Patient Navigator role to improve health equity, patient safety, and system access
among Latinx patients, and increase patient and provider satisfaction

• Provided medical interpretation, cultural advocacy, in medical and associated encounters

• Assisted patients in navigating the healthcare system through case management, advocacy,
coordination, and facilitation

• Presented on panel at Pedialric Compassionate Care Rounds regarding importance of

culturally and linguistically specific medical care in critical cases
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4/2020- Early Childhood Program, Hartford School District (White River Junction, VT)
7/2020 Community Interpreter, Independent Contract

• Provided virtual community interpretation. Assisted family with advocacy and coordination of
culturally and linguistically appropriate school-based services

7/2018- Children's Integrated Services, Child Development Division (Waterbury, VT)
5/2019 Medical/Community Interpreter

• Provided in-home interpretation. Assisted family with advocacy and coordination of culturally
and linguistically appropriate school-based services

6/2018- Southern Jamaica Plain Health Center, Brigham and Women's Hospital (Boston, MA)
9/2019 Macro Social Work Intern

• independently coordinated evaluation, redesign, and implementation of ACO-mandated Social
Determinants of Health (SDoH) program to improve workflow functionality, program
sustainability, and employee satisfaction

• Planned and facilitated interdisciplinary program meetings to redesign and implement SDoH
program. Meetings included: Executive Director of Health Center, Medical and Nursing
Directors, Health Promotion Center Director, social workers, community health workers,
resource specialists, etc.

• Led case management surrounding SDoH. and trained team of interns to take over case
management workflow

• Led team on academically rigorous program evaluation project and report production
• Supported day-to-day program operation

1/2018- Cambridge Camping Association (Cambridge, MA)
5/2018 Macro Social Work Intern

• Used best practice research to independently develop tools to evaluate effectiveness of camp
programs. Designed unique evaluation tool to be implemented by counselors and seamlessly
facilitate grant reporting. Trained counselors in implementation.
• Planned and coordinated camp programs to engage youth and promote learning and personal
growth

• Conducted outreach with potential funders and partner organizations; market research and
grant prospecting; participated in grant writing and preparation

9/2016 Youth Hub, Boston (Boston, MA)

Macro Social Work Intern

12/2016 • Worked with colleague to design, plan, and implement professional skills workshop to improve
youth outcomes

• Facilitated professional skills workshops with collegue, focusing on youth engagement and
empowerment

• Used best practice research to design methods to evaluate youth development through
program participation

• Participated in collaborations with partner organizations and community networking

3/2014- Independent English as a Foreign Language Teacher (Santiago, Chile, South America)
3/2016 • Created successful business; responsible for financial management, marketing, and

professional networking

• Designed and implemented innovative, client-centered program for clients from
GlaxoSmithKline Chile, Moly-Cop Chile, etc.
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Elsy Cipriani, MPA

EXPERIENCE

Intcrnntional Institute of New En}>hind, Mnnchestcr. Nil -Mnnnging

Director / June 2019 - Present

•  Responsible for the planning, development, and implementation

of all programs, including gnmt and contract development,

reporting, and policysctting for program activities.

•  Assess and evaluate program effectiveness and outcomes to

ensure responsiveness to client needs. Work with program staff

to implement program modillcations to rcUcci conti'actual

regulations, client needs, and the IINE ntission and goals.

•  Develop new programming in the areas of youth sports and

academics, as well as adult education, employment, skills

training, community services, and citizenship that are fmancially

sustainable.

•  Provide professional development opportunities that align with

staff needs, contractual regulations, and programmatic needs.

•  Build and maintain relationships and paitnerships with

community-based and student-serving organizations in New

Hampshire.

Heading Home. Boston, MA — Senior Director of Programs

August 20IS - July 2019

•  Builtand guided a diverse team of professionals towards

aggressive goals while maintaining positive team culture,

panieuiarly during times of organizational growth and change.

•  Responsible for the designing and implementation of tracking,

monitoring and evaluation systems for all agency's programs.

•  Ensured programs operate within the approved budgets and grant

agreements as well as monitoring and approving all budgeted

program c.xpcnditurcs.

•  Collaborated with community partners and the Stale to make

positive improvements towards the Emergency Assistance

system in Massachusetts.

Heading Homo. Boston, MA— Director of Family Services

July 2016-July 2018

•  Provided regular supervision, support, and personalized

professional development foraii Youth and Family Services

programs staff.

•  Oversaw the delivery of client services, evaluated programs

impact and recommended program/policy cliangcs.

•  Collaborated with the COOand DaiaTcam to develop and

implement tlic iinckingof process and outcome data forthc

'Family Services portfolio of programs.

SKILLS

Widee.xperience in program

management and

developmetit.

Successful record working

together with and managing

inultieultural teams.

High commitment to work

vviili and serve vulnerable

populations.

EDUCATION

jM:).s(cr[ii Piil)lic

Administration

Sirayer University

BA. Economics PonliUcia

Universidad Catolica del

Ecuador 2005

LANGUAGES

English and Spanish

AWARDS AND PUBLICATIONS

Hispanic Heritage Award

2018. Award provided by the

Boston City Council for my

work with Latino

communities in Boston.

Paradigmas del Rcfiigio

Colombinnocii Quito. Jesuit

Refugee Service 2006.

Colombia mas allA dc la

inigraci6n: El refugio

hiinianitario. Jesuit Refugee

Scr\'ices 2004,
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•  Represented l-leading l lomcat coinniunity meetings, including

those sponsored by Monies for Families. United Way.Cambridge

l ioiising Authority and the Department of l-lousing and

Community Development (DMCD).

Boston Public Health Commission, Boston. MA - Director of Planning

Council / Januai7 2015 - July 2016

•  Managed Planning Council stalT and all Council-related activities

and act as intermediary between the Planning Council,

community, and govenimenf,

• Worked to retain and increase participation of current members,

and developed recruitment plans to attract new applicants,

particularly Irom undeiTepresented minority communities.

•  Developed funding streams and needs assessment reports, and

participated heavily in the drafting of yearly gram applications.

•  Coordinated and conducted skill-building trainings foi'Council

members. Researched and recommended new projects and

workshops.

Southern Jersey Family iVIcdicnl Centers, Hnnimonton. iNJ - Community

Programs Manager/ September 2013 - February 2015
>

•  Designed, implemented and evaluated different community

programs with the goal of improving health outcomes among

migrant fann workers and other target populations.

•  Oversaw the implementation of the AlTordable Care .Act across 7

community health centers and sun'ounding communities,

through partnerships with local agencies, schools, and

businesses.

•  Responsible for all progiams' fiscal management.

•  Managed MobileMcdiciogistics, and personnel to make sure wc

reached out to populations in need in our area of service. This

service was targeted primarily to Haitian and Mexican farm

workers.

La Casa dc Don Pedro, Newark. N'J - Health Services Manager

October 2009 - September 2013

•  Responsible for the operations and continuous improvement of

all community health programs.

•  Designed and implemented community programs' curriculums

based on target population's needs.

•  Developed partnerships with local agencies and schools to

support the deiivcryof our programs.

•  Trained and managed programs" staff, interns and volunteers.

•  Responsible for fiscal management, and reporting to programs',

grantors.

California Rural Legal Assistance, Marysviiie. CA - Community Worker

July 2006 - August 2009

•  kienlified target population's needs ilirougli direct outreach and

networking.

•  Developed and manage the office's marketing and outreach

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE

Vida AfroLntina

2018 to present

Co-Chair for the Board of

Advisors.

FC Blazers Soccer League

2015 to 2017

Created marketing materials and

support during games.

When and Where I Enter

2012 to 2014

Translated grant applications

from Colombia and Ecuador.
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initiatives.

•  Designed and delivered educational workshops on hcaltli,

liousing, labor, and consumer rights.

Jesuit Refugee Service, Ecuador - Lead Rcscnrchcr/Field Office Coordinator

January 2001- October 2005

•  Designed and itnplemented a two years study to determine the

living conditions of Colombian refugees in Quito, Ccuador.

•  Raised all the necessary funding to implement research study,

and the openingof an office to serve refugees in Quito, Ecuador.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Megan Clark Community Services
Manager

$50,400 22.64% $8,924.51

Emily Filiano Family Services Specialist $44,990 19.04% $8,566.47
Elsy Cipriani • NH Managing Director $85,000 5.81% $4,939.87



Leri A. Shibincttc

Commisiioner

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-9200 1-800-8S2-3345 CxL 9200

Ftx:603-27M9I2 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

-/

March 20. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of the Commissioner, to enter
into sole source agreements with the vendors listed below to provide the sen/ices and activities to
promote the health and well-being of refugees resettled in New Hampshire, in an amount not to exceed
$225,000, effective August 15, 2020 or upon date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
whichever is later, through August 14, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Vendor

Number

Location Contract Amount

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. 222201 Concord, NH $112,500

Intemational Institute of New

England, Inc.
177551 Manchester, NH $112,500

Total: $225,000

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2021 and anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years
2022 and 2023 and 2024, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future
operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-d5-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SVS, HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number

\

Total Amount

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $65,421

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2023 ! ■  102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $75,000

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 42200012 $9,579

f *-»■

i

1

Total $ 225,000
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EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because the vendors listed above are the only entities who. possess
the comprehensive client information and cultural expertise required to manage client cases and address
the complex, interrelated health and social needs of each individual, Moreover, because Health
'Promotion services build upon and flow from the services provided under the Reception and Placement
and Case Coordination grants, contracting with these entities ensures that no clients fall through the
cracks, and that there is continuity of care with no gaps in services.

The purpose of this request is to provide services and activities that promote the health and
wellbeing of refugees resettled in New Hampshire. Services include, but are not limited to health
orientations; health education; medical and mental health case management; and health provider
education. The services are provided in an effort to reduce gaps in services and to ensure refugees
obtain all necessa^ medical and mental health services beyond the initial health screening.

Approximately 500 individuals will be served over the duration of the entire contract term.

The Contractors will ensure services include scheduling and coordinating medical and mental ,,
health appointments; accompanying clients to medical appointments; providing and facilitating .
transportation to appointments; and ensuring iriterpr^eter services are acquired for all appointments, as
necessary. . ..

The Contractors will be providing these, sen/ices to refugees; resettled asylees; and secondary
migrants who have been in the United States for five years or less, with a focus on individuals who have
been in the United States two (2) years or less as well as any victims of trafficking, (SlV)'s or other (ORR)
designated eligible recipients arriving In the service areas:

Refugee Health Promotion services provided by the Contractors v/ill

(1) Promote the health literacy of refugees to enable them to access and navigate the U.S.
Health Care System independently;

(2) Ensure refugees obtain all needed medical and mental health sen/ices in a timely and
culturatiy appropriate manner;

(3) ' Increase refugee access to affordable health care over the long term; and

- (4) Assist refugees beconr>e self-sufficient and decrease the need for public assistance. ■

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of the Contractor and the delivery of services
required under this agreement using the following performance measures:'

o  100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be-provided
throughout the project period, as necessary.

o  100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in the United States two (2)
years of less shall be prioritized.

o  100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified and prioritized for
translation as applicable.

o  100% of all interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and regularly throughout
the project period.

o 80% of refugees shall express an Increased knowledge about health insurance
requirements including how and where to enroll in health insurance.

o 80% Number of adults with increased knowledge about accessing and navigating US-
Health system
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and the Honorable Council
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o 80% Number of adults who know how- to make and keep health appointments

o 80% Number of adults who can use public, Medicaid and/or appropriate transportation
to get to medical appointments

. o 80% Number of adults who demonstrate increased knowledge about at least one health
topic

o  100% Number of clients with health needs beyond initial exam scheduled for follow-up
care

■  o 100% Number of arrivals with mental health needs scheduled for appointment within 60
days of arrival

As referenced in Exhibit-C-1. Revisions to Standard Contract Language, of these agreements,
the parties have-the option'to extend contract services for up to three (3) additional years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agr^ment of the parties and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, refugees with complex
health conditions may not receive the follow-up medical care they need in a timely, culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner. The inability of refuges to access necessary health care could result
in a lack of understanding and managing their health and health conditions.

, Area served: Statewide.

Source of Funds: Administration for Children and Families 100% CFDA# 93.576 FAIN#

In the event that the Federal (of Other) Funds become no. longer available. General Funds will
not be requested,to support this program. '

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinelte
Commissioner

77»e Dtporinieiil of Health and Httntan Servicee' Mission is to join tonimnnitiet and fomiliet
in prouiding oppcrlnnilits for ciliiens to ochietit health and indeptndenee.



DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER CONTRACT AMENDMENTS

SPY 2016 FINANCIAL DETAIL

06-95-95-422010-79220000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS,

HHS: OFFICE OF THE COMMISSIONER, OFFICE OF HEALTH EQUITY, REFUGEE SERVICES
100% Federal Funds

Ascentria Community Services, Inc. Vendor #222201

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Tttle Job Number

Total Contract

Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 32,812.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37.500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 s 4,668.00

Sub Total $ - 112,500.00

International Institute of New England, Inc. Vendor#177551

State Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Title Job Number

Current Modified

Budget

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 32.609.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 S 37,500.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 $ 37,500.00

2024 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 42200012 s 4,891.00

Sub Total ■  42200012 s 112.500.00

Overall Total! $ • 225.000.00l

Attachment • Bureau of Behavioral Health

Financial Detail

Page 1 of t
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Siibjcc(:_Nc\v Hflmpsliirc Rcrugee Ileallh Proinoiiou Program (SS*202I-OHC-01-RBFUO-02)

Kniicc: IMi ftftrcemcnl "«<i Mlofiis «((fichmcn«5 jJinll bceonw ptiblic upon submission loOovcmornwd
I'jtecuiiv* Council for i|tproval. Any inforuiaiioi) Ih^l is privnic, confidcuhjil or propriciar) mnsi

'  be cle«Tlyid«nliried 10 ihca^cucy and ngreed to ill wTiiingprioriosigning tlx commci.

ACREt.MKNT

The Since of New Hnmpshirc nnd ihc Contrnccor hereby nnilnally agree as follows-.
CENFRAI. PROVISIONS

l.r Scntc Agency Name

New Hnnipshire Oepariineni of Kkniih and 1 lunian Services

1.2 Stale Agency Address

l29Plcasanl Sircct

Concord,NH 0330I-3I.17

1.3 Cuntraclor Nanie

Inlcmalioniil InsiiUiic ofNcw Kciglantl, Inc.

1.4 Coniracior Address

2 Boylsloii Streel 3rd Floor
Dosion, MA, 02116

1.5 Coiilmccor Plione

Number

((317)695-9990

1.6 Accouni Number

05-09'5-042-7922000-
42200012

1.7 Coiiv'^hon Dfic

Aiignsi 14, 2023

I.S Price i.iniiCnCion'

1 12,500 I

1.9 Contniclinf OfTicer for Slace Agency

Nfllhan D. Whice, Dircccor

1.10 Scale Agency Telcplionc Number

(fAl) 271-9631

'Ufl roKimccftSlcpiaiure' I /

\ \ASW-s Di
1.13 Nciinc and Tick of Comracior Signaiory

Jeffrey Thielman, President and CEO '

1.13 Stme-AgeicctSigtiWiire 1 .U Name oml Tiik ofSciin; Agency Sigiiuiury ^

tote!
1; 1 Approval by the N.M. Depanoicni of Adininlsiraiion. Division of Personnel 0/ttppHehblv)

gy. Diiccior, On:

1.16 Appiovnl by die Cc^^l (F^^^siai^and E.«citlioii) f{f<f/vV'c''Wc7
1.17 AppniyDllA- ilicJjovcriiormKi EscculivcCoiiiicil fi/o/»/r/rCfi/»/l-^ ^

GftOltcinntliiiftr:: GAC Mcciiiig Dale:

Pcige 1 of 4
Conlrnclor hiiliflls

Dale '■



2. SERVICES fO B£ PKRFORMKO, The SuiU-of New
Hnnipsliire, aciindi through t!ie ngrnc>' ideniificd in block 1.1
("Sintc"). engftges contrpcior ideiiiified in block 1.3
("Conir&ctor'') to perrnrm, and the Contrnctor shall perform, the
uxirk or sale of goods, or hoih, idcniified nnd more partictilnriy
described in the oitoched CXMIOIT D which Is incorporoied
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES-
3.1 Noiwiihsianding Any. provision of this Agreement to the
conlrer)', and subject to the epprONTil of (he Oovcrnor and
E.\ecuiive CouiictI of ihc'Siate of New llnnipshire, if Applicable,
this AgreenKiit.and all obligations of the parties Iterrundcr, shall
become effective on ilic date the GoN'ernor and E.^cecutive
CouiKil Approve this Agreenteni as indicated in block 1.17;
unless no sudi approval is teqnircd, in which cnse the Agrccntcni
•diall become effective on the riate the Agreemeni is signed by
the Sute Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EITective Date").
3.2 If ihc Contractor coinntcnccs tlic ScrvKcs prior to (he
liffeciive Date, all Services perfonned by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Cotiimcior, and in the event tltoi this Agreement does (wt become
.efTecii\-e. tl>e State shnll have no linbiliiy to the Coniractor.
including wii|)Oitl llmilaiion, tOny oblignlion lu pay the
Contractor for any costs tiictiiTCd or Services perfonned.
Contrnctor rmist complete nil Scrv-ices by the Contplction Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithsiaitding nny provlsmu of this, Agreement (o ilic
contrary, ail obligations of the State liereiinder, including,
wiihoui liinitalion, (he coiilinuaiKe of payincnls hereunder, are
contingent upon the AVAilnbiliiy nnd continued npiwopriAiicm of
funds AlTceicd by any slate or federal legislative or e.vecutivc
action ilint reduces, eliminnies or otherwise niodincs tiic
npproprinlion or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for ̂ rviccs provided.in EXHIBIT B, in witolc or in
pan. in no cveitt sliall the State be (table for any p.a)ineni$
iKrcundcr in excess of sucii nvaiinble Appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of nppropriAictI hind.s; the
Slate slial) have the riglti to withhold payment until such funds
becoiTtc nvaiioble, if em, and shnll have the right to reduce or
lermhtatc llic Services tmd.cr this Agreement iminetliately iipnn
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tcnnination.
Tlx .Stale shall not be required to transfer funds from nny other
account or soiircc-lo the Account idcniirxd iit block*.1.6 in the

event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CDiVI RACF PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The coniracr price, mctliod ofpayntcnl, and terms ofiMiytncni
are identified and more panlcularly described in EXHIBIT C
winch Ls iixoritonticd Ixrcin by reference.
5.2 Tlie-paymeni by.the State of the controci piice shall be the
only and the complete rcjmbnrscntcni to the Contractor for all
e.\|Xiises, of whatever iiAlure irKiirrvd by the Conimctur in tlx
perfonnnitce hereof, nnd shall be the only and the complete'

compensation to the Conlrnclur for the Services; The Sinic shnll.
have no linbiltiy to ilie Contractor other than the contract price. ■
5.3 Tlx State rescivcs the' right to offset from any amounts
otIterwiK pay'nble to tlx Contractor under this Agreement (hose
liqiiiilaied anxunls required or pennitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision oHaw.'

,5.4 Nolwilhsiaiiding any provision in this Agreemeni .to Ihc
contrary, and ixiwiihsinnding unexpected circumstances, in no
event iliall the total of all p.iyments authorized, or actually made
heretmder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. c:o.mplianc:e dv contractor with i-kws
AND RECULAT IONS/ EQUAL EMPl.OVMEN f
OPPORTUNm'.

6.1 In conncciion with the pcrfonnancc of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regtiiaitons, nnd orders of fedenil, stale, cbuniy or municipal
Aulhoniies which, impose any obligation'or duty upon tlx
Contractor. incliKling. but not limited (o, civil rights and equal
entployineni opportunity laws. In nddiiion, if this Agreemeni is
funded in'any part by monies of the Uniicd States, the Contractor
shnll comply with all fcikrni e.xccitfive ordcis, rules, rcguiaiions
and st.itutc.s, and with any rules, reguhtions and guidelines as the
State or tlx United States issue to inipletitcnt these regulations,
the ConlQctor.sliall also compl)' with all applicable intellectual
property bws;
6.2 During the term of this Aprcenxnt, the Contrnctor slutll not
discrlmiiiotc against employees or applicants for employment
bccninc of race, color, religion, creed, oge, se.v, handicap, sexual
oricntftilon, or national origin and will lake nffirmative action to
pfcvem such discriininatlon.
6,3. The Cottiraclor agrees lo pennii the State w United Stales
ncccss lo any of Ihc Coniracior's .books, records and accounts for
the pmvose of ascertaining complinnee .with all rules, rcgtilniions
Aiul orders, etid ihc covenants, lernis aitd condliions of this
Agrcemem,

7. PERSONNEL

7.1 Tlx Contractor shnll at its own expense provide all pcnonnci
txce.ssary to perfornt the Services. The Contrnctor warrmiis that
all personnel engaged in the ScrN'iccs shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shnll be property licensed and
clher>vise auUKwized to do so under all applicable l.nws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreemeni, and for a period of si.x (6) months after the
Completion Date In block l.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shnll not |xriiiii nny subcontmcior or other person, firm or
corporation with whom h i.t engaged in a combined effort lo
pcrfwitt llx Services lo hire, nny pcnon who is a Slntc employee
or ofllcial, who is niAlcrially iiwolved- in llie procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreemeni.
7.3 The Contracting Officer S|xcifie<l in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the .State's rcprcscniaii\*c. In the event of nny
dispute concerning Ihc intcrprcinlion of this Agrccnicnt, the
Contracting Officer's dccislpn shnll be fniul for the State. -

Pflgc 2 01*4
Coiiiraclor Initials f
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of llic fotloimg accs or omissions of ihc
CoiiirAcior shnll constitute nr> event of defnnlt Kereuniler ("Event
of Default");
8.1.1 failure to. perfonn the Services saiisfactonly ur urt
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcrcundcr; mtd/ur
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or coiid.ition of
this Agreement.
8.3 Upon the occurrence of any EN^nl of Oefotih, the State may
take any urtc. ur more, or nil, of iltc following notions:
8.2.1 give the Conimcior n 'written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfntili and requiring it to be remedied tvithin, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thiiiy (30) days from the
date ofihe nniicc; and ifthe Event of Oefoitit is not timely cured,
lemiinatc this Agrcentcnt, effective two (2) days aOer giving (he

. Contractor notice of lenniitation;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Dcfniill niid suspending nil payments to be made uiklcr this
Agreement and ordering thai (he ponion of the contract price
wiiich would otherwise nccrue to the Contractor during the
period from tlic date of such notice until such timc.ns the Sinic
deicnnines that the Contractor has cured the Extnl of Deranli

shall never be paid to the Conlrnclor;
8.2.3 give iheConinicior a written notice specifying the .Event of
Defniili ar>d set oO'against nny other obligations the .State may
owe 10 the CoiiirBcior any damages the Stale suffers by reason of

. tiny Event of Ocfnuh; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contrncior n written notice speci^'ing the Event of
Dcfnuhi-' (real the Agreement as breached, tcrminaic (he
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or hi equity, or
both'.

8.3. No failure by the State (o enforce nny provisions hereofafler
any Event ofDcfatili shall be deemed n waiver ofiis rights with
rcgnril to that Event of Dcrauli, or nny subsequent F.vciil of
i)cfniili. No express failure to enforce nny Event of Default shall
be deemed n waiver of thc-right oflhe Slate to enforce each and
oil of the pivvistons hereof upon any further or other Event of
Oernnh oii the part of the Contractor.

TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragnph 8. the State ntay, at its sole
discrciton, (erminaie (he Agreement for any reason, in wliole or
in part, by ihiiiy (30) doys urittcn notice to ilic Conlrnclor that
the State is e.vercising its option to tcniiiuale the Agrceinenr.
9.2 )h the event of on early lerininAiion of this Agreement for
any reuoii other than the conipietioii of (Ik Services, i)k
ConiiActor shall, at the Sinic's discretion, deliver to tlK
Contracting OITicer, not Inter than rinren(l.^)d3)-snner the date
of icnnin.nion, a report (•'Termination Report"!) describing in
detail all Scrs'lccs pcrforiiKd, and iIk contract price earned, to
and iiKluJing the 'date of terniinntion. TIk fonn, subject niaiter.
cotilciii, and number of copies of (he 'Tcniiinalion Flvpori sli-jll
be idcaiknl to those of any l-'inal Report described in the atiachcd
EXIIIDIT D. In addition, iit the Slate's discretion, the Contractor
shall, wiihiii 15 da)-sorROlice of early tennlnation, develop and

submit to the State a Transition I'Inii for services itiKler the

Agreement.

10. l)ATA/ACC:E.SS/CONHOKNTIALnV/

PRESERVAIION.

10.1 As used in tills Agreement, (he word "data" sitall mean all
jnfdmt.aiion and things developed or obtained during the
perfonmancv of, or ncqiitrcd or developed by reason of, thiis
Agreeineni, incliidiog. but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, sursxys. maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rcprodiKtions, drawing's, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, coinpiiler printouts, notes,
IcKen, iuen)oniiK(.t, papers, nnd documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the Slate or piircliascd with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the Slate upon demand or upon tcmiinaiion .
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conridcniiiilily of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91'A or other c.xisiing law. Disclosure of data requires'
prior written approval of (he Stale.

I r. CO.NTKACrOR'S RELAl ION TO THE CTATE. Inlhc
})erfumiiiiice of lltis Agreement the Contracior is in all respects
All' indeiKiidcm contrncior, and is neither an agent itor an ■
cmplo}X'c of iIk .Stale. Nctilier the Cqulntclor nor luiy of its
ofTicers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
hind the State or rcccivc nny hciicri(.s, tvorkcrs' competisaiion or
other emoluments provided by the Slate to its employees.

12. ASSICNMKNT/DEI.ECATION/SIinCGNTRAClS.

12.1 The Contractor shnll not assign, or olhcrwisc transfer any
interest in lliis Agreement without the prior UTiiieit notice, which .
sli.all be provided to (he State at le.asi fifleen (15) days prior to
the assignment, aiKl a ivriticn consent of the State. For purposes
of this . paregrapli, a Change of Control sliall constitute
assignntenl. '•Change of Coiilrol" means (a)' merger,
consolidation, or n imnsnciion or series of related ironsnctlons in

.witich a third party, together witit its nfllltates, becomes (he
direct or irtdircci uvoicr of fifly iKrccnl (.^0*A) Or more of (he
voting shares or similar equity interosis, or combiiKd voting .
power of the Contractor, or (b) (he sole of all or substantially all,
of the'assets oflhe Coiitmcior.

12.2 Noik of the Services shall be subconirnclcd by the
Contractor wiihom prior written notice nnd consent of the Stale.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracis and nssignment
agreemetils nnd shall not be IkuiiuI hy any provisions conlaiiicd'
in a subcontract or an assignment ngrccmcni to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless olhcrwisc exempted hy Inw, .
the Contracior shall indemnify and hold hannless the Slate, its
ufTlccrb' and cmjtloyccs, froiii uitd iigainsi any and all clo'ims,
liabilities and costs for nny personal injury or property damages,
paleni or copyright iufringcmciit, or other claims asserted ngamst
the State, its ofllcers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) iIk acts or omission of iIk
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Coninictor, or suhcontreciors.-iitckidin^ bui not linti(«l lo ilie
iKgligciKC, rcckksi or iiitcniional conduct. The Sinie simll not
be liibic for Aiiy costs incurred by llic Contmctor Arising under
this ptfBgraph 13. Nolvvjihstntidingihe forcgoing.iioiluugUcrcin
contnined shall be deemed to constitute n svnivcrorihc sovereign
immunity of the Stntc, >vhkh imimmiiy is hereby reserved to the
Sintc. This covenant iti pamgraph 13 shall survive tlie
lermirulion of this Agreement.

U. INSURANCE. .

U.I The Coitiracior. slinll, At its sole e.vpense, obiniii aitd
continuously mainiaiii In foive, ai)d shall require niiy
subconlrucior or assignee to obtain and niaininin in force, tlic
follotving insumiKc:
U.I.I commercial general linbilic>- Insitnince against nil claims
of bodily injur)', death or property dnnixgc, in nntounis of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence end $2,000,000 nggregntc
or excess; ond
U.I.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all propcrty
subjeci lo subparagropli 10.2 hereirt, in an omouni not less than
SO*/e of (he ivhuic replacement value of the properly.
U.iThe policies dcscribcd.insubpnrngraph 14.1 hcicin shall be
on policy fontts nud endorsements apixoved for use ii> the .State
of New Hampshire by the N.ll. Department ofiiisurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hatnpsli ire.
(4.3 The Coniracior shall furnish to the Coniracling Officer
idcniified'in block 1.9, Of liis or her successor, o ccriincatc($) of
insurance for alt insurance reqiiircil under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Coniraciing OfTtccr identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor. €eiiificaie(s) of iiisumncc
for nil renetval(s) of insurance required under this Agrceineiil im
later than ten (10) days prior lo.ilie c.V|iiraiion date of each
insnrancc policy.' The certincale(s) of insiirnncc and nny
reuewals ilKreofsIiall be altaclw'd nml are incorpornicd lirrcin by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 Uy signing this'agreement, the Contrnctor agrees, certifies
and wnntmts that (he Contractor is in contpliancc with or.exemju
from, tite requirements of N.M. RSA chapter 28! -A ("Worien'
('.OIIIlKftiOtiOU").
15.2 To ilicr.vtcni the Contractor is subject to liie requirements
of N.ll. RSA chapter 28I-A, Contrnctor sliaii inniniain, oikI
require nny subcuntmctur or assignee (o secure and inainiain,
payment of Weuicrs' (!oiupensnlion in comieclitm with
activities which tire person proposes to undertake pursuant to'this
Agreement. The Contractor slmil fumlsh the Cqniraciing Officer
idcmified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, pioofof Workers'
Compensation In the iuanucr described in N.H. RSA cluipicr
281-A mid any applicable rcucwal(s) thereof, n-lilch shall be
altaclied and arc incoiiJoratcd herein by referriKC.' Tlic-Siaie
shall not be responsible for pa>micnl of nny Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any' subcontractor or employee of Commeior,
which might arise under opplicnble State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
perfonuance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the oilier party
shall be deemed to have been duly deiix-ered or given at the time
of inniling by cenified mail, postage prepaid,' in a United States
Post Office addrc.ssed to the parties at the Mldrcsscs given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDiMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged oiily hy an iiisirumeni in writing signed by the

.parties hereto and only nRcr approval of such amendment,
waiver or dbchargc by ilie Governor and'F..xccutivc Council of
tl* Slate of New I lanipshirc unless no such approval is required
uitdcr ilic circumstances pursunni lo Sltile taw, rule or policy.

18. CllpJCt OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted nud construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hanip.shirc, and is biiitling -upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and (heir resp«cii\-e successors
ond assigns. The wording used in (his Agreement is the wording
chosen by the p.-irtie$ to express llicir mutual intent, ond no nile
of construction sliali be applied agninsi or in favor ofeny party.
Any actions arising cm of this Agreement sliall be brought and
mnintnirved in New I Inmpsliire Superior Cotin which shall have
c-xclusive jiirisdiciioii thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a confiiei

between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIDIT
A) niid/or aiinclimcnts mid aniendment thereof, the teniis of the
i'O? (as modified in CXHIDIT A) shall control.-

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third panics and this Agivcinem shall not be
consinied to confer'any such benefit.

21. IIE.AOINCS. The headings througiiuut the Agreement arc
for reference purposes only, and the words contnined therein
sliall in no way be Iteld to cx|ilnin. modify, amplify or aid in ilte
iiiterprvtalio'n, eonsti'uclion or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the niiached E.XHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERADILITV. In the event any of (lie provis'ions of this
Agfeeiiieni art kid by n court of coiU|>cicnt juiisdiction to be
cnnirnry to any State Or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will rciiiniii in full force and ctreci.

24. ENTIRE ACREEiMEN T. This Agreement, which may be
executed in n uuinher of coiuiicr|)ails, each of which shall be
ilecmed an original, constitutes the entire agreement atui
itiidcrslandlng between the parlies, and supersedes alt prior
agreements and understandings with respect 10 (he subject matter
hereof. •
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New Harffpshlre Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Prorhollon Program

EXHIBIT A

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37. General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3. Subparagraph 3.1. Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, arrd
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on August

, 15.2020.

1.2. Paragraph 3. Effective Date/Completion-of Services. Is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

•3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12,' AssignmentyDeiegation/Subcontracts, Is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows: , "

'12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Conlfactor and the Conlraclor Is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed jf the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall mbnage the
subcontractor's.performance on an ongoing basis and lake corrective
action .as necessary, the Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.,

SS-2021-OHE-0I-R6FUG-02 ExrtM A - Revisions lo Siandaid ConUicl Provisions Conliaclof IniUah ^ i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotlon^rogram

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services and activities that prom'ole the health and
wellbeing of designated eligible refugees. Services shall include, but are not
limited ,to. medical and mental health case management, health orientations,
health education, and health provider education. Services will ensure that
refugees; (1) obtain needed health (Including mental health) care beyond the
initial health screening: and (2) gain the basic knowledge and skills they need to
navigate the U.S. health care system and to manage their own health and health
care independently. Services will help to Increase refugee access to health care
and to reduce gaps in services.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are delivered statewide with a focus on the'
geographic areas of Concord, Manchester, and Nashua.

1.3. the Contractor ishall designate a case manager to provide health (including
.mental health) case management services to ensure refugees with- complex
health conditions obtain needed health care beyond the initial health exam,
including appropriate health Insurance.

1.4. The Contractor shall ensure case managenient services include, but are not
limited to:.

1.4.1. Scheduling and coordinating medical and mental health appointments;

1.4.2. Accompanying clients to medical appointments;

.  1.4.3. Providing and facilitating the provision of transportation to and from the
appointments;

1.4.4. Ensuring appropriate interpreter services are available as.necessary
during appointments; and ' • ' .

1.4.5. Assisting refugees with obtaining appropriate health insurance.

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure a uniform, continuous and timely transition of case
management services from the initial refugee health examination to all needed
follow-up care beginning after the completion o.f the initial refugee health
examination and/or on day ninety one (91) of resettlement (whichever Is sooner),
to ensure there are no gaps in services.and continuity of care.

1 .e.The-Contractor shall schedule an initial dental appointment for all refugee children ■
(age 0-18) within six (6) months of arrival.

1.7. The Contractor shall conduct culturally and -linguistically sensitive health
orientations which shall include, but not be limited to the following topics: •

1.7.1. ' Navigating the U.S. health care system.

.1.7.2. Health Insurance, including Refugee Medical Assistance.-

:iT
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampehire Rotugoo Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.7.3. Privacy and consenllaws.

1.7.4.. The right to language assistance In health care settings and the role of
interpreters.

1.7.5. Transportation options for medical appointments. Including but not limited
to:

1.7.5.1. Public transportation training; and

1.7.5.2. Arranging Medicaid transportation.

1.7.6.' Understanding types of health care providers including but not limited to: .

1.7.6.1. Primary care providers;

1.7.6.2. Specialists; and

1.7.6.3. Pharmacists.

1.7.7. Understanding types of health care (e.g., preventive, urgent, emergency),
and when, where and how to access each type.

1.7.8. Understanding availability of and when, where and how to access
mental/behavioral health services, including treatment for substance use
disorders.

1.7.9. Scheduling, keeping and cancelling appointments.

1.7.10. What to bring to appointments.

1.7.11. Medication. Including but not limited to;

1.7.11.i;The difference between prescriptions and over-the-counter
medication;

1.7.11.2. Refills;

1.7.11.3. Dosage instructions; and

.  1.7.11.4. Side effects. .

1.8. The Contractor shall provide appropriate interpreter services arid translated
materials for the health orientations.

1.9. The Contractor shall adapt the health orientation curriculum to accommodate the
needs' of new refugee populations, with approval from the. Stale Refugee

•  Program.

1.10. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of individual refugees who have
received health orientation services, including but not limited to the following:

1.10.1.-The individual clienis participating in the health orientation;

1.10.2. The toplc(s) of orientation completed by each participant;

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02
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New Hampshire Department ol Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

.1.11. The contractor shall conduct both group (defined as'a minimum of two {2)
participants) and individual health orientations, including at least one home visit
to reinforce and clarify the information presented in the group setting, and to
address unique issues and concerns.

1.12. The Contractor shall provide, solely or In collaboration with other organizations,
at least six (6) group health education classes. The contractor shall;

1.12.1. Identify topics of concern in each of the various refugee populations and
prioritize the topics that are most urgent or relevant on an ongoing basis.

1.12.2. Invite and arrange for outside organizations to provide health education
classes on the identified topics that are within their expertise;

,1.12.3. Schedule the presenters;

1.12.4. Ensure the provision of interpreter services;

1.12.5. Notify clients of class schedules;

1.12.6. Health educallon session topics may Include, but are not limited to:

1.12.6.1, Health insurance terms, coverage requirements, options and the
enrollment process.

1.12.6.2. Disabilities, including but not limited to autism". .

■  1.12.6.3. Women's health, including but not limited to domestic violence
and reproductive health;

1.12.6.4. Men's health;

■ 1.12.6.5. Emoiional Wellness;

1.12.6.6. Lesbian. Gay. Bisexual, and Transgender (LOST) health;

1.12.6.7. Oral health and hygiene;

1.12.6.8. Vision health;

1.12.6.9. Nutrition and benefits of exercise;

1.12.6.10.Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV);

1.12.6.11.TubercuIosis risk reduction;

1.12.6.12.Fire safety.

1.12.7. The Contractor shall provide health education in a culturally and
linguistically appropriate manner.

1.12.8. The'Contractor shall distribute satisfaction surveys at health education
sessipns, lo survey clients on the usefulness of the .information,
presentation style, and other relevant information.

SS-2021-OHE^1-REFUG-02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.13. The Contractor shall inform and coordinate community resources for the provision
of health care services not covered by Refugee Medical Assistance (RMA) or
other funding sources.

1.14. The Contractor shall support the provision of no'nclinlcal interventions, such as
adjustment support groups, to promote refugee wellness and prevent suicide.

1.15. The .Contractor shall participate tri National Alliance ori Menial Illness Mental
Health First Aide trainings and/or other similar professional development
opportunities, to inform practices.

1.16. The Contractor shall support and/or assist with periodic screening of refugees
for emotional distress using the Refugee Health Screener 15 (RHS-15),
communicate results, and rhake referrals to health care providers as needed.

.1.17. The Contractor shall maintain relationships with the health (including mental
health) 'providers within the refugee resettlement network through outreach,
education and meetings. Areas of focus shall include but are not limited to;

1.17.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.17.2. Barriers to care that mayinclude but are not limited to language, cultural
factors, and transporlalion Issues.

1.17.3. Continued adherence to the CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial
domestic medical examination.

1.17.4.'National Standards forCLAS In health and healthcare.

1.18. The Contractor shall develop and foster relationships with a minimum of four (4)
health care (including mental health) providers who are not in the refugee
resettlement network through outreach, meetings and education. Areas of focuS' >
shall Include, but not be limited to the following:

1.18.1. Refugee health needs and culture.

1.18.2. Barriers to care that include, but are not limited to language and culture
barriers, and transportatiori issues.

1.18.3. CDC Refugee Health Guidelines for the initial domestic medical
examination.

1.18.4. National Standards for CLAS in health and healthcare.

1.19. The Contractor shall provide education and training to refugees at various
stages of resettlement about the availability of health insurarice through the
Marketplace and alternative sources.

1.20. The Contractor shall provide assistance with accessing, navigating and enrolling
in health insurance options through the Marketplace, expanded Medicaid or
other financial assistance options including but not limited to facilitating
applications.

SS.2021.0HE-01.REFUG-02 Conlractor Inllials '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT 8

1.21. The Contractor shall provide planning and evaluation for Refugee. Health
Promotion Program (RHPP), including but not limited to the following: !

1.21.1. Develop and collect linguistically appropriate surveys/questionnaires that |
are built into health sessions and trainings. |

1.21.2. track the following: ' ■

1.21.2.1. Number ofreferrats made; I

1.21.2.2. Number of training sessions and participants; |
1.21.2.3. Number of consultations or point of.contact with providers; j

and

1.2V2.4. Number of meetings and training sessions. :

.1.21.3. Feedback with health service providers to learn how the coordination is |
' working and make adjustments as necessary.

1.21.4. Internal feedback with staff, parlicularly case'managers-.(and other case
management specialists) to evaluate the relevance of the' orientations to -
implement necessary changes leading to anticipated improvements. i

. 1.22: The Contractor shall communicate any health screening results received, ' ' !
which may be conducted by the Contractor or by a third party, concerning a
client, to medical providers as needed.

1.23. The Contractor-shall facilitate referrals to behavioral health providers, as j
needed. j

1.24. The Contractor shall maintain documentation of (he following: |
• *

1.24,1. Overall number of refugees resettled in the reporting period. * j
I

. 1.24.2. Number of initial domestic health examinations completed within thirty (30); i
sixty (60) and ninety (90) days of arrival. j

, * • • I

1.24.3. Number of < refugees receiving health and/or mental health case
management services to address complex health conditions beyond the -
initial domestic health examination.

1.24.4.'The demographics of the refugees served, including gender, age, primary
language; and country fled.

. 1.24.6. Number of refugees referred for follow-up services related to Dental
Issues, Emergency Issues (ER). Tuberculosis. HIV, Mental Health,
Infectious Disease. Physical Therapy. Prenatal .Care. Hearing Issues,
Vision Issues, and other conditions identified by the NH Slate Refugee
Health Coordinator.

-  1.24.6. Number of refugees assisted In.obtaining appropriate health insurance > .
both upon arrival, and at the time of transition off Refugee Medical

' Assistance.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hsmpehiro Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

1.25. The Contractor shall identify the primary health related Issues of concern In
each of the various refugee communities. Concerns may include but are not
limited to diabetes, hypertension, mental health and/or oral health concerns.

.  1.26. • The Contractor shall provide all required reporting Id.the Department within
fifteen (15) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.27. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting to the Department within
thirty (30) days following the completion of the reporting period.

1.28. The Contractor shall provide all required reporting at In-person meetings as
requested by the Department.

1.29. The Contractor shall have the following staff:

1.29.1. One (1) Administrator; and

1.29.2. One (1) Health Case Manager.

1.'30. The Contractor shall participate in trainings in order to understand health
insurance coverage and enrollment requirements on both the state and federal
level.-

2. Reporting iRequirements

2.1. The Contractor shall submit-monthly reports to the Department within thirty
(30) days following the end of the reporting period, to. include but not limited
to:

2.1.1. Number arrivals by gender and immigration status. ■

2.1.2. Number receiving tuberculosis screening within the following time periods:

2.1.2.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.2.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival: and

2.1.2.3; . Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.3.^ Number receiving initial health exam within the following time periods:

2.1..3.1. Thirty (30) days of arrival;

2.1.3.2. Thirty (30) to ninety (90) days of arrival; and

2.1.3.3. Ninety (90) days or more.

2.1.4. Number of children age six (6) months to sixteen (16) years of age that
have been screened for lead. '

■ 2A.5. Number of children scheduled for first dental.appointment within six (6)
months of arrival.

'2.1.6. Number of clients referred to the following:

2.1.6.1. Primary care provider: i

2.1.6.2. Dental care provider;

SS.2021-OHE.01-REFUG-02 Contractor If>ilia5s
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

2.1.6.3. Emergency room; ;

2.1.6.4. Mental health provider;

2.1.6.5. Infectious disease specialist;
2.1.6.6. Vision care provider;

2.1.6.7. Hearing care provider;

2.1.6.8. * Pre-natal care provider; and ^

2.1.6.9. Other specialists.

2.1.7. Numl^er of clients receiving services by country of origin.

2.1.8. Number of clients receiving health case management services:

2.1.9. Number receiving-mental health case management services.

2.1.10. Number clients participating in an adjustment support group.

2.1.11. Number clients receiving initial health orientation and topic(s) covered.

-2.1.12. Number clients receiving health educat/on and topic(s) covered.

2.1.13. Number of service providers receiving training.

2.1.14. Number of health case manager trainings and topic(s).

2.2. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department within
thirty (30)..days following the period completion, and as required by grantor.^

2.3. The Contractor shall submit a final program report to the Department within
thirty (30) days prior to the completion of the contract period.

3, Performance Measures

3.1. ' The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are achieved
annually and monitored on a monthly basis to measure the effectiveness of
the agreement:

3.1.1. 100% of all health-related orientations and workshops/trainings shall be
provided throughout the project period, as necessary.

3;i .2. 100% of all newly arrived refugees and those who have been in (he United
States two (2) years or less shall be prioritized.

3.1.3. 100% of all written materials and resources produced shall be identified
and prioritized for translation as applicable.

3.1.4. 100% of all Interpreter services shall be coordinated consistently and
regularly throughout (he project period.

3.1.5. 100% of all refugees with acute or chronic health conditions who require
care beyond the initial medical examination. shall receive case
management, including but not limited to;
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT 8

3.1.5.1. Scheduling and coordinaling medical appointments;

3.1.5.2. Transportation services; and .

3.1.5.3. Interpretation services.

3.1.6. 80% of refugees shall demonstrate increased knowledge about health
insurance requirements including how. when and where to enroll in health
Insurance.

3.1.7. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge about accessing and-
navigating US Health system.

3.1.8. 80% of adults will know, how to make and keep health appointments.

3.1.9. 80% of adults will know how to use public.■ Medicaid and/or appropriate j
transportation to get to medical appointments. i

3.1.10. 80% of adults will demonstrate increased knowledge of at least one health
topic.

3.1.11. 100% of clients with health needs beyond Initial exam will be scheduled for, . j
follow'Up care. !

3.1.12.100% of arrivals with mental health needs will be scheduled for j
appointment within 60 days of arrival.

3.1.13. A mlnimuni of four (4) new relationships with providers outside of the
refugee resettlement network shall be established during each annual ;
project period. I

•  3.1.14. A minimum of four (4). meetings with providers within the refugee
resettlement network shall take place during each annual project period. ' i

3.2. The Contractor shall rneasure program outputs through the following which shall
include but not be limited to: '

3.2.1. Number and percentage of new refugees' attending group health
orientations, and the topics completed during each session;

3.2.2. Number of percentage of new refugees' receiving a health home visit.
3.2.3. Number of referrals to heallh, mental and behavioral health or other

services.

3.3.The Contractor shall measure the health literacy among refugees and the
improvement of their understanding of their health and of the American health j
system by utilizing a simple questionnaire offered at each workshop and I
orientation. , . 1

3.4.The Contractor shall track the number of individuals participating In* and
completing health education sessions, as well as the topics covered in each ;
session. j

i
AT ' !SS*202l-OH6-01-ftEFUG-02 Contractor Inilials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

3.5. The Contractor shall track the number and percentage of refugees receiving
health and mental health case management services, including:

3.5.1. Refugee demographics.

3.6.The Contractor shall track the number of health providers In the refugee
resettlement network receiving education/ training.

3.6.1. The Contractor shall track the number of health providers outside the
refugee resettlement network receiving education/training.

3.7. The Contractor shall measure the effectiveness of support services provided to
refugees to Increase their access to appropriate health insurance by tracking
the number and percentage of refugees accessing affordable health Insurance
upon arrival and those educated about and referred for assistance in obtaining
appropriate, health insurance, when transilioning off Refugee Medical
Assistance.

3.8. The Contractor shall work collaboratively with the Department and other .key
stakeholders to adapt any performance targets if necessary.

3.9. The Contractor shall develop and submit a corrective action plan- to the
Department for any performance measure that was not achieved.

3.10. The "Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes. >

3.11. The Contractor rhay be required to provide other.key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

■  3.12. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share, data with the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

4. . Additional Terms

4.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

4.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or. federal legislation
or court orders rriay have an impact on the Services described herein, the
State has the right to modify Service prlorilies end expenditure
requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

4.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

4.2.1. The Contractor shall submit and comply with a detailed description of the
language assistance services they will provide to persons with limited
English proficiency and/or hearing impairment to ensure, meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

SS-202l-OHE-0t -ReFUG-.02 ContracJof Initiate,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee' Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

4.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

4.3.1. All documents, noiices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the services
of the Contract shall include the following statement. "The preparation of'
this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds
provided in parl by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding
sources as were available or required, e.g., the United States Departrnent
of Health and Human Services."

4.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have prior
approval from the Departmen! before printing, production, distribution or
use.

4.3.3; The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and-all original
materials produced, including, but not limited to;

4.3.3.1. Brochures.

4.3.3.2. Resource directories.

4.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

4.3.3.4. Posters.

4.3.3.5. ■ Reports..

4.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce ariy materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

4.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

4.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor shall
comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, stale, counly and
municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impost an order or duty upon the contractor
with respect to the operation of the facility or the provision of the services
at such facilily. If any governmenlal license or permit shall be required for
the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permil, and will at all limes
comply with the terms and conditions of each such license-or permit. In
c.onnection with the foregoing requirements, the Conlraclof hereby
covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities
shall comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and'requlrements of the
State Office of the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and
shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and
regulations.

SS-2021-OHE-01-REFUG-02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Now Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

4.5. Eligibility Determinations

4.5.1. If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals such
' eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable
federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and
procedures.

4.5.2. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by the
Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times
as are prescribed by the Department.

4.5.3. In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the
Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of sen/ices
hereunder, which file shall Include all information necessary to support an
eligibility determination and such other Information as the Department
requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and
documentation regarding eligibility delerminalions that the Department
may request or require.

4.5.4. The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as
well as .individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that" delerminalion. The Contraclor hereby covenants and
agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill put an
application form andThal each.applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed
of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Records

5.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

5.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
.  'evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Ccnlracl, and all income received or
collected by the Contractor.

5.1.2. All records must be maintained In accordance with accounting procedures
and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such costs and
expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and to include,,
without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence .of
costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for
materials, inventories, valuations of In-kind contributions, labor time cards,
payrolls, and other records requested or required by the Department.

5.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall Include all records of appllcatiPr) and eligibility
(including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services and all Invoices submitted to
the Department to obtain payment for such services.

SS-2021-OHe-01.ReFUG-02 Conlraclor Intliafs.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

5.2. During the term of. this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of
the price limitation hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parlies
hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

6. Termination ReportyTransltlon Plan

6.1. In' the event of early termination of the Agreement, the Contractor shall, within
15 days of notice of early terminalion. develop and submit to Ihe^ State a
Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not limited to,
identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under the
Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

■6.2. The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the Stale and shall promptly provide
detailed information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to,
any Information or data requested by the State related to the termination of the
Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing communicalion and

■ revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as requested.

6.3. in the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to
clients receiving services under the Agreement are trar)sltioned to having
services delivered by another entity including contracted providers or the Stale,
the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of services in
the Transition Plan.

6.4. The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected
Individuals about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed
communications in Us Transition Plan submitted to the State as described
above.

7. Exhibits Incorporated
. 7.1. All Exhibits D through H and J are attached hereto and incorporated by reference

herein.

7.2. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in compliance
with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance'Portability

SS-2021.0H£^l-REFUG 02 Contraclor tniliala ^
International Institute of New England. Inc. Pago 12 of
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N&w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT B

and Accounlabllity Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and In accordance with the attached
Exhibit I. Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties
and is incorporated by reference herein.

7.3. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. OHHS Information Security Requirements,
whichi is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein..

SS-202VOHe-0l-REfUG02
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded with federal funds.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved

.  line Item, as specified in Exhibits C-1. Budget through Exhibit C-4. Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of the following month, which Identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The
Contractor shall ensure the Invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department In order to Initiate payment. r

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to laura.mcglashan@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

l-aura McGlashan. NH State Refugee Health Coordinator
Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Health Equity
97 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord. NH 03301
(603)-271-2688

5. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available, subject to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions Form
Number P-37 of this Agreement.

6. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract complelton date specified in Form'P-S?. General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. The Contractor must provide the services In Exhibit 8. Scope, of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

8. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, In i
whole or in part in the event of non-compliance with the terms and conditions of • !
Exhibit B. Scope of Services. j

9. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary Herein, the Contractor agrees that j
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event \

. of non-compliance with any Federal or Stale law. rule or regulation applicable to ■ \
the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been I
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and condltioris of .this
agreement.

IniernationsI Institulo of New England, Inc. EKt>itiii C Coniiodof hiUtoia —»—
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New Hampshire Oepartmer)t of Health and Human Services
New Hampshire Refugee Health Promotion Program

EXHIBIT C

10. Notwithslanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P«37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may.be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive. Council, if needed and
justified.

11. Audits

11.1. The Contractor Is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist;

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a-subrecipient.pursuant to 2 CFR
Part 200. during the most recently completed fiscal year.

11.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to. audit pursuant to
the requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b. pertaining to
charitable organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or
more.

11.1.3. Condition C • The Contractor Is a public company and
required by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC)
regulations to submit an annual financial audit.

.11.2. If Condition A exists, (he Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordarice with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subparl F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Priri.ciples, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

11.3. If Condition 8.. or Condition C exists, the. Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an Independent CPA within' 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

11.4. In addition to. and not in any way tn limitation' of obligations of the
Cpntract, It is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Coritractor shall be held liable for any stale or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has. been taken, or which have been
disallowed.because of such an exception.

International Inelituto ol New England. Inc. Exhibii C
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFiCATlQN REGARDING DRUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the.General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections $151*5130 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act'of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el teq.}, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the fotiowing Certiftcation:

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION * CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE •' CONTRACTORS

This certificatjoh Is required by the regulations imptemenllng Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1930 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
conlraclors). prior to award.That they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (arxJ by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fisce! year in tieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarmenl. Contractors using this form shoukf
send it to; .

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street, '
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workpl^e by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that wtll be taken against employees for violation of such
prohib'ttlon;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of mainlaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any avaUable drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that maybe imposed upon employees lor drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requlrern'enl that each employee lo beengaged in the performartce of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying (he employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the stalement; arxf ■
1.4.2. Notify Ihe employer In writing of his or her conviction (or a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Nolilylng the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4,2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such cor^v'rction.
Employers of conwcted employees must provxfe notice, including position title, to every grant
' officer on whose grant activity ihe convicted en^ployee was working, unless (he Federal agency

CUOoH/IIMI}
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identificalion number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph. 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who »s so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. ' Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Slate, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplaca through
implementation ofparagraphs 1.1,1.2.1.3,1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the siie(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific granl.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file thai are not identified here.

Vendor Name;

hrfi
Date

?vis; ZEo
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Now Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibits

CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG LOBBYiNG
y

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 10M21. Government vwde Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, end
31 U.S.C.-1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following pertlficalion:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicabte program covered);
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program .under Title XX
'Medlcaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Tille VI
'CNId Care Development Block'GranI under Tille IV

The undersigned certlfles. -to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have Ijoen paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the uridefsigned, to
any person for infiuencing or aUempling to infiuencb an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, ah officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member ol Congress in
connection with the awardirrg of any Federal contract, conllnuallon, renewal, amendment, or

• modiflcalion of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific menlion
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
■  influencing or attempting to lnfluer>ce an officer or employee of any agency, e Member of Congress,

an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member ol Congress in connection wHh Ihls
Federal contracl. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
conlreclor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying. In accordance with Its'lhsfroclions. attached and identified as Standard Exhibtt_E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (includlrig subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.-

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed wher^ this trarisaction
was made or enlered \n\o. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section I35l Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shaD be subject to a civil penally of not less than $10,000 and nol more lhan $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name:

Dale
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

It.

CERTIPtCATfON REQAROING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of Ihe'General Provisions agrees to compty with the provisions of
Executive .Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Oebarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 end 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION .
1. By signing and submilling this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the cerHficalion required below will not necessarily resutt in denial
of participalion In this covered Iransaclton. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation svill be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Sen/ices' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of llie prospective primary .
participant to furnish a certification or en explanation shall disqualify such person from participalion In
this transaction.

3. The certificalico in this clause is a material representation of faci upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective.

. primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certKicalion. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction tor cause or default.

4." The prospective primary participani shall provide Immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submillad if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submilled or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. '

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible.' "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant,* "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
'voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Defcnllions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the •
attached deliniiions.

6. • The prospective primary participani agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, shquld the
•proixjsed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enler into any lower tier covered
' transaction with a person who is debarr^. suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participalion in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it wjll Include the
dause tilled 'Certification Regarding Oebarrnenl. Suspension. Ineligibilily.and Voluritary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Trensecltons/ provided by OHHS, without modification. Irl all lower tier covered
transactions and in ell solicitalions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the,covered transaction, unless II knovys that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by whjch it determines (he eligibiliiy.of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

EjWDU F - Ccrtif<«flon Re^janJlng OcbvmeN. Suspension Vendoi Wuato .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is-normally possessed by a prudent
person iri the ordinary course of busir>ess dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, inetigible, orvoluntafiiy excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate Ihis traniaclion
lor cause or default.

PRIklARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary partielpanl certiries to the best of Ha knowledge end belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

■ voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection svilh obtaining. aUempting to obtain.'or performing a public (Federal. Slate or local)
transaction or. a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlemeni, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen properly:

11.3. are not presently Indlcled for otherwise criminally or ciwily charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certirication; and

11.4. have nol vyithin a three-year period preceding this applicalionfproposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defaull.

12. Where the prospective primary participanl is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By sighing and submllling.lhis lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76..certir«e3 to the best of its knowiedge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective tower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participanl further agrees by submitting this proposal (conuacl) that It will
include this clause entitled 'Certificatton Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibilily. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations (or lower tier covered transactions.

Vendor Name:

.  . ™ .

Date Nam^
CBo
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the Ger^ral Provisions agrees by signature of the Conlraclor's
representative as identitied In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Vendor will comply, end will require any subgrantees or sut>contractors to comply, with any 'applicable
federal r>ondiscrimirtaliort requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C.'SMlion 3789d) wh'ich prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color,.religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Sccfion SS72(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of (he Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or'
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act Includes Equal
Employmenl Opporlun'rty Plan requirements;

• the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or.nalional origin in any program or activity); -

• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of •
servicQS.cr benefits. In any program or aclivily;

• the Americans with Disablfilles Aclof 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131'34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabitilies in employment. State and local
government services, public acconvnpdalions. commercial facilities, and (ranspor1alior>;

- the Education Amendments of 1972(20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibils
discrimination ort the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs; >

.-the Age Discrimmalion Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohbils discrimination on the •
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal financial assiistance. (t does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice-Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws lor faith-based and community
organizations): Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-maXing
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood orgart'izations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations): end Whislleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorlzatipn
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2.2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against-
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and coniracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grarit. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grourjds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmeni.

ExMbll G '
Vendor Iriitleis
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

In (he event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
egains.i a recipier^t of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of tlie finding to the OiHce for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Heeflh and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identiried In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the rollowir>g
certification;.

I .• By signing arxJ submllt^g this proposal (conlract) (he Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicaled above.

i/1 ")/?<>
Date . ^ , Nam . ...

ame:

e*tibliG A \
VtndO' Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Part C - Erwironmenlal Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
<Acl). requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by en entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library'servlces to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guaraniee, The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residertces. facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portioris of feclliiies used for inpatieni drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuil in the imposition of a civil monetary per^ally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following-
certiftcation;

1. By signing and submitling this contract, the Vendor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply with
all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

ir Name:

Date

Ve

.Narhe:

Ti'le; CiJO
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New Hampshire Department of-Heafth and Human Services

Exhibit i

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABtUTY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the Ger>aral Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 .
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health Iriformallon under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity' shad mean the Stale of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in secliori 164.402 of Title 45,
-  Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Business Associate' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45, Code .
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d.. 'Desionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designate record set"
in 45 CF8 Section 164.501.

e. "Data AQoreQation* shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" In 45 CFR
•  Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care Ooeralions' shall have the same meaning as the term "heallh care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinveslrnenl Act of •
2009. ' ' -

h. 'HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Slandards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heallh
Information, 45 CFR Paris 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. ■ 'Individual* shall have the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFRSection 164.601(g);

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the Unite^d States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Heallh Information" shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
Information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. .-p

3/20M euMjill Conmelof Iniliala ^
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Now Hampshire Depadmont of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law* shaU have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Seeretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Securitv Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Pad 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized irxiividuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing o/^anization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.'

p. Other Definitions - All ternis not otherwise defined herein shall have (he meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164. as amended from lime to time, and the
HIT6CH

Act.

(2) Business Aaaoclate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would conslllute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. - Busmess Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the heatlh care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party (hat such PHI will be held confidenlially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for Ihe purpose for which.il was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to-notify Business
Associate, In accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of (he confidentiality of the PHI. to Ihe extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary lo
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agre.emenl, disclose any PHI In response, to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to (he disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

3/2014 enhWll Contuciof InitUH ^ ̂ •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notiRes the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) , Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the .Covered Entity's Privacy O^cer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
' health Information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of urvsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b.' The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment v^en it becomes
aware of any of the atx)ve situations. The risk assessment shall Include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the prelected health Information .Involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identincation;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
. disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected heallh infonnalion was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health Information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all seclions of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule. ,

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Buslriess Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third pafty beneficiary of (he Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

siT

c.

d.

e.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit ('

pursuant to this Agreement, .with rights of enforcement and Indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by starxfard Paragraph # 13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. VWthin five (5) business days of receipt of e written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices ell
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to (he Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity. .
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an Indlvidual ln order to n^el the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill-its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and Information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by. an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving' a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfil) its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance wllh 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. " In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the .
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assodate shall return or deslroy. as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, end shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to In
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses aixJ disclosures of such PHI lo those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeadble. for so long as Business

3/20U EimWli CenhJcloftnUials *
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Exhibit I

Associate maintams such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ail PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to

■ Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limilalion{s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change orlimitation may affect Business Associate's ^ •
use or disclosure of PHI. j

J

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by Individuals whose PHI may be used or \

'disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section i
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. .

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or •
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 184.522, |
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of j
PHI. . {

I
(5) Termination for Cause |

1
In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this j
Agreement the Covered Entity may Immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered '
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate I
Agreement set fbrlh herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately [
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the j
alleged breach wilhin a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. • If Covered Entity .
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the • !
violation to the Secretary. i

I

(6) Mlsceflaneous

a. Definillons and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not othen^ise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning-as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to !
a Section in Ihe Privacy and Security Rule means the Seclion as in effect or as i
amended.

b. • Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree 1o take such action as is •
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered ' j
Entity to comply with the changes in Ihe requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and ;

• Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rightswith respect to Ihe PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. , |

d. Inleroretalion. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved jto permU.Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, j
3/20,4 ExhINU Conlraaor tniilalt j
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New Hampshire Department of Health.and Human Services

Exhibit I

ScQfeQalion. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect Without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and coridUlons of this Exhibit I are declared severabte.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense arKl indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Healih and Human Setvlcet ' International Insjitule,of New England
fhTstate ^ /flame'BNhe Ooptractor'

SignaTiire of Authorized Representative Si^Qatije of Authorized Representative
Jeffrey Thielrrian

Name pf Authorized R^re^entative. Name of Authorized Representative
President and CEO

B pf Authorized RMresentauve.

Title ofAulhorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date Date

ExhU>>ll

Heantt Intuiance PortaMity AO
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New Hampshire Oepartmenl of Health and Human Sorvleea
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CERTiPICATlQN REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILiTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardces of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 end awarded on or after October l. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$26,000. the award is sutjject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
eubaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award .

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
.9. .Unique identifier of the entity (OUNS P)
' 10. Total compensation and nanr>es of the top five executives If;

10.1. More than 80S of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues ere greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting lo the SEC.

Prime grant recipients niust submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Conlractof Idehllfied In Section i.3 of the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Execufive Compensation Information), end further agrees
to have the Contractor's represenlative; as Ideniified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of Ihe General Provisions
execute the foliowing Certjficalion:
The below named Conlractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Oepartmenl of Hcallh and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial lAccounlabilKy and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Dale N^t/e: T>. .-nqt
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Now Hampshire Oopartment of HoaUh and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORMA

As the Contractor idenllfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
betow.listed questions are (rue and accurate..

1, The DUNS number lor your cnlity is: %06'd-

2. in your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
toans; grants, sub-grants, end/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in o/»nual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 1H above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does Ihe public have access to informalion aboul the compensation.of the executives in your .
■  business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer lo #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer lo #3 above Is NO. please answer .the following:

4. "The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated oHicers in your business or
organization are as follows; -

Name:,

Name;

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amounl:.

Amounl:.

Amounl;,

Amounl;

Amount;

CU'OriiiS'ndM}
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. DHHS Information Security. Requirements

A. DefinUions

The following terms'may be feflecled and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control. . compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where, persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable

■  information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards' and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3.

4.

5.

6.

"Cbnfidenlial Information" or "Confidential Data" means' all confidential Information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits arxi personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

•Confidential Information also includes any and all information ovyned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of perforrhing contracted
services - of Nvhich collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payrhenl Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

'End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate-, subconlraclor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.-

"HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

"Incident" means an act that polenlially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either/ailed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacemenl,:ioss
or mlsplacemenl of hardcopy documents, and misrouling of physical or electronic
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

mall, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unaulhorlz^
access, use.-disclosure, modification Of destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State' of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and-
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and hot adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

6. "Personal Information* (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
.  or trace an indhriduars Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal

Information as defined In New Hampshire RSA 359-C;l9. biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or idenliiying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Slates Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information' (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the-
definition of "Protected Health Inforrnaiion" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C;F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Secuhly Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subparl C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Heallh Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unaulhorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards.developing organization that Is acaedited by

•' the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBIUTIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidenlial lriformalion.

1. The Conlractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Infprmatiori
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor.
Including but not limited to all Its dlreclors. officers, employees and agenls. must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner thai would constitute a violation
of the Privacy end Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to' a

vs. Lati upoate uvosns ExtftrilK .
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request'for disclosure on the basis thai It Is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the.disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the eonlractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound' by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to' Ihie Privacy and Security. Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional reslrlctions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that OHMS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must onty t>e used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contraci may not be used for
•  any.other purposes that are not Indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representativeis
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance vrith the terms of this
Contract.

II. IVIETHODS OF SECURE TRANSfVIISSION OF DATA

'  1. Applicatipn Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confiderilial Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert kriowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer.disks
or portable storage devices, such as a Ihumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3.' Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Conridenlial Data if
email Is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized,to receive such information.

4. ■ Encrypted Web Site. If. End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site. .

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Sen/Ice. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerlified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wifeless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9 Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's rhobile devlce(s) or laptop from vmich information will be
transmitted or accessed.'

10 S,SH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

■ be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (I.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User Is transmitting Confidenlial Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE f^ECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form 11 may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end. the parlies must:

A. Retention

1.

2.

3.

4.

•5.

The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Conlracl outside of the United
States. This physical localion requirement shall also apply "in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

The Contractor.agrees to-ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect poienlial security events thai can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.
The Contractor agrees to provide.security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting .Department confidenlial information.
The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section ly. A.2

The Contractor agrees Confidenlial Data stored In a Cloud must be in a
FedRAIVIP/HITECH compliant solution' and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. AH servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anli-matware utilities. The environment, as a

. »
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-deteclion and firewall protection.

6.-. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

B. Disposition"

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for. any Slate of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containirig Stale of

-' New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
■ in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure deletion arxl media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the rhedia (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 000-08. Rev 1. Guidelines
for Media Sariitlzalion, National Institute of Standards arid Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce.' The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
lime of the data destruction, and will provide wriilen certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification viaii include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirerTienls will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise spedfied, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3." Unless otherwise 'specified, vwthin thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all elecironic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
conlldenilal information collected., processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will malnlain policies and procedures to protect Department'
confidential Information throughout the Informalion lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. (ape. disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Conlraciof wlll maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit,, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
.detect potential, security events that can impact Slate of NH systems and/or
Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.'

5. The Conlraclor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagernenl
supporting the serwces for State of New Hampshire, the Conlraclor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectallons, and monitorir>g compliance to securlly requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notificalion requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
Slate of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Conlraclor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. if the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work v^th the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of. the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the-life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Conlraclor. or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the.Contractor changes.

.'10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United Slates unless
prior express v/ritten consent is obtained from the information Security Office,
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future .breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The Slate shall recover from the Conlraclor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit rnonitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes end regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies. Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 5S2a}. DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HiPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164)'that govern protections for individually identifiabie health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
■  physical safeguards to protect the confidenliaiity of the Confidential Data and to

prevent unaulhorized.use or 'access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security thai Is not less than the level and scope of security requirements

■" established by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology;
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement al hUps:/Awvw.nh.gov/doil/vendorflndex.htm"
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Infofmation relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notificalipn and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any secuniy breach Immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section Vt. This includes a confidential information breach, computer

_ security Incidenl. or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the Stale of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection wiih-purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Conlraclor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards, as referenced' in Section IV A. above,
' impiernented to protect Confidential Information that is furnish^ by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

- b. safeguard this information at all times.
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or

PFI are encrypted and password-protected,

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only If encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by-email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such Information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and Individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric Identifiers, etc.). ? '

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all limes when In transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable m^la as required In section IV above.

h. In all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate, safeguards, as determined by a rlsk-ljased

.  assessment of the circumstances involved.

I. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to^credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor Is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
resen/es the right to conduct onsile inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of ir> accordance with this Contract.

1

V. LOSSREPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any'
Security Incidents and'Breaches, immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI. , ■

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agericy's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and

' notwithstanding. Conlraclor's compliance with ad applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures niusl also address how the Contractor will:

1. identify liicidents:'

2. Determine if personally identifiable Information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents
and determine risK-based responses to Incidents; and.
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5. Determine whether Breach notincatlon Is required, and. if so. identify appropriate
Preach notification methods; liming, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well-as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that Implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C;20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrlvacyOfficef@dhhs.nh.gov

•  B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformatlcnSecurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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